APPROVED BY

Phygital International FZCO

<u>11 December</u> ___ 2025



RULES AND REGULATIONS

of the International Multisport Tournament "GAMES OF THE FUTURE"

to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1. Glossary and Abbreviations
Chapter 2. Goals and Objectives of the GotF 20255
Chapter 3. General Provisions6
Chapter 4. Roster of GotF 2025 Participants8
Chapter 5. Admission to the GotF 20259
Chapter 6. GotF 2025 Venue and Dates
Chapter 7. GotF 2025 Structure and System
Chapter 8. Awarding
Chapter 9. Funding
Chapter 10. Provision of Safety, Medical and Anti-Doping Measures16
Chapter 11. Rights and Duties of PI
Chapter 11.1. Commercial, Image and Other Property Rights Related to the GotF 202519
Chapter 12. Obligations of the GotF 2025 Participants24
Chapter 13. Refereeing
Chapter 14. Disciplinary Infractions and Sports Sanctions
Chapter 15. Appeals
Chapter 16. Dispute Resolution
Chapter 17. Final Provisions31
ANNEX 1 to the Rules and Regulations. APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE GOTF 2025 (Form)
ANNEX 1a to the Rules and Regulations. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING & WAIVER (Form)
ANNEX 2 to the Rules and Regulations. CONDITIONS FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE GOTF 2025
ANNEX 3 to the Rules and Regulations. PARENT/GUARDIAN CONSENT (Form)
ANNEX 3a to the Rules and Regulations. CONSENT TO PERSONAL DATA (ADULTS) (Form)
ANNEX 3b to the Rules and Regulations. CONSENT TO PERSONAL DATA (CHILDREN) (Form)
ANNEX 4 to the Rules and Regulations. PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS



Chapter 1. Glossary and Abbreviations

Agreement is the Host City Agreement concerning the organization and holding of the Games of the Future 2025 (GotF 2025) signed between PI and PI's counterparties ("the HCA counterparties").

Chief Panel of Judges (CPJ) is an authorized body set up by PI to ensure compliance with the Regulatory Documents as a whole, as well as the organization of sports refereeing of the GotF 2025 during its organizing and holding.

Competition Disciplines (Disciplines) are a set of Sports (Sports disciplines) in which the GotF 2025 is organized and held in accordance with the Rules and Regulations.

GotF 2025 is the International Multisport Competition to be held in Abu Dhabi, UAE, from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, titled "GAMES OF THE FUTURE". For the purposes of the Rules and Regulations and the Regulatory Documents, "Games of the Future International Multisport Competitions" shall be recognized as being an identical name for the GotF 2025.

Official GotF 2025 website is gofuture.games.

Phygital Sports is a complex competitive activity based on the integration of functional and digital segments, which are implemented either in stages during the competitive process within the framework of one competitive action, united by a combined result or score.

PI is Phygital International FZCO.**Sports (Sports disciplines)** are sports (sports disciplines) recognized by PI in which the GotF 2025 is organized and held; the list of Sports (Sports disciplines) shall be approved by PI.

Referee Panel is an authorized body that is set up by PI to organize direct refereeing of one of the Competition Disciplines and ensure compliance with the Regulatory Documents when holding the GotF 2025 in specific Sports (Sports disciplines).

Regulatory Documents are the Rules and Regulations, the Rules of Sports (Sports disciplines), the Technical Rules, the WPC Disciplinary Regulations, the Regulations on the GotF 2025 Prize Pool, the Regulations on the Chief Panel of Judges and Referee Panels of the GotF 2025, decisions awarded by the Chief Panel of Judges & the WPC Disciplinary Committee, as well as other documents approved by PI concerning certain areas of the organization and holding of the GotF 2025.

Rules and Regulations are these Rules and Regulations of the GotF 2025.

Rules of Sports (Sports disciplines) are the rules governing the Sports (Sports disciplines) in which the GotF 2025 is organized and held, as recognized by PI.

Technical Rules are regulatory documents approved by PI that define the conditions and procedure for conducting the GotF 2025 in the given Sports (Sports disciplines) or their combinations in the interdisciplinary double-event format.

WPC, or World Phygital Community Limited, is a non-profit, non-governmental organization registered in Hong Kong (Business Registration No. 75641205, Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). It provides direction and oversight for introducing and promoting Phygital Sport internationally.

WPC Discipline mean Phygital Shooter, Phygital Basketball, Phygital Football, Phygital Dancing.

WPC Disciplinary Committee is the disciplinary authority of WPC, which applies sanctions to individual subjects of Phygital Sports in accordance with the procedure provided for by the WPC Disciplinary Regulations.

WPC Disciplinary Regulations are Disciplinary Rules and Regulations approved by WPC.

All terms and definitions provided in the Glossary may appear in the Rules and Regulations with both uppercase and lowercase letters without prejudice to their meaning.

##

The terms and definitions provided in the text of the Rules and Regulations can be used in both singular and plural form without prejudice to their meaning.

All references to individuals, as outlined in the Rules and Regulations, are intended to be inclusive of both masculine and feminine genders.

Other terms and definitions not included in the Glossary are to be interpreted according to the definitions provided in the Regulatory Documents.

Chapter 2. Goals and Objectives of the GotF 2025

- 1. The goals of the GotF 2025 are:
 - To create a system of Phygital Sports competitions;
 - To create the highest quality sports and entertainment product in the field of sports, innovation, and technology;
 - To promote and further develop Phygital Sport;
 - To promote sports, healthy lifestyles, innovation, and technology.
- 2. The objectives of the GotF 2025 are:
 - To determine the GotF 2025 winners;
 - To increase the level of sportsmanship of the GotF 2025 participants;
 - To improve the refereeing of GotF 2025.

##

Chapter 3. General Provisions

- 1. PI is the rightsholder of the GotF 2025.
- 2. PI and the HCA counterparties exercise their powers within the limits defined by the Rules and Regulations and the Agreement.
- 3. PI and the HCA counterparties carry out joint activities to organize and hold the GotF 2025 in the manner and on the terms stipulated by the Agreement, the Rules and Regulations.
- 4. A number of organizational powers, rights, and obligations of PI in relation to the GotF 2025 may be granted to the HCA counterparties under the Agreement.
- 5. PI engages WPC to review and confirm the rules governing WPC Disciplines, as well as to select and appoint referees for these disciplines.
- 6. In order to organize and hold the GotF 2025, including the selection of participants and other activities, PI has the right to engage third parties. PI is responsible for organizing and holding the GotF 2025 in a proper manner, ensuring the safety of the participants during the GotF 2025, financial, medical, logistics, and other support of the GotF 2025, unless otherwise provided for by PI's agreements with the third parties engaged, the Agreement, and/or other agreements signed by PI.
- 7. Refereeing at the GotF 2025 is conducted by the Chief Panel of Judges and the Referee Panels, consisting of the referees approved by PI. The peculiarities of the GotF 2025 refereeing are provided for in Chapter 13 of the Rules and Regulations and can be detailed in the Regulatory Documents.
- 8. Participation in the GotF 2025 is not based on risk and is not connected with participation in gambling or betting.
 - No money is charged for participation in the GotF 2025.
- 9. The GotF 2025 is held in accordance with the Regulatory Documents, the applicable laws in the field of sports. All GotF 2025 participants, their representatives, officials, other specialists, referees, and other persons involved in the GotF 2025 shall know and follow the Regulatory Documents.
- 10. Participants who have provided PI with any information shall be responsible for the accuracy of such information.
- 11. Names, surnames, photo, and video materials containing the images of participants and other persons connected with participation in the GotF 2025, as well as interviews and other materials, may be used by PI to fulfill obligations to hold the GotF 2025 or for other purposes that are not in contradiction to the applicable laws.
- 12. It is prohibited to exert illegal influence on the results of the GotF 2025 and the results of its individual parts (matches/fights/races, etc.). Sports sanctions and penalties for exerting illegal influence on the results of the GotF 2025 and its individual parts (matches/fights/races, etc.) held during the GotF 2025 shall be imposed in accordance with the procedure stipulated in the Regulatory Documents and other documents of PI, as well as the applicable laws in the field of sports.
- 13. Participants and other officials involved in the GotF 2025 are prohibited from gambling with bookmakers by betting on the results of the GotF 2025 and its individual parts (matches/fights/races, etc.), as well as on official sports competitions in Sports (Sports disciplines).
- 14. No representatives of PI or the HCA counterparties may participate in the GotF 2025 as sportsmen, representatives, or in any other capacity within the teams or as judges or referees, unless otherwise provided by PI's decision.



Chapter 4. Roster of GotF 2025 Participants

- 1. The roster of the GotF 2025 participants is compiled and approved by PI.
- 2. Athletes who form teams compete in the GotF 2025.
- 3. Participants have the right to form their own team by submitting a collective application for participation in the GotF 2025.
- 4. In the absence of a team, PI has the right to form teams independently of those who applied to participate.
- 5. Both men and women, amateur and professional athletes, are allowed to take part in the GotF 2025.
- 6. The roster of the GotF 2025 participants is compiled of persons who qualify under the requirements of the Rules and Regulations and who have applied for participation in the GotF 2025 in accordance with in the Rules and Regulations.
- 7. PI may select potential participants for the GotF 2025 at its own discretion. In such cases, invitations shall be sent out to potential participants on behalf of PI. Invitations may also be sent by third parties authorized by PI.
- 8. The roster of participants is approved by PI and published on the Official GotF 2025 website.
- 9. The possibility of replacing a participant with another participant, and the relevant procedure, are defined by the Technical Rules.
- 9.1. By submitting the application for participation in the GotF 2025, the team has the right to replace (substitute) any athlete only if medical documents are provided confirming the presence of an injury or other circumstances that prevent the athlete's participation in the GotF 2025, notarized and translated into English. Substitutions are allowed only during the application period specified in paragraph 4 of Chapter 5 hereof. Provisions on substitutions apply only to the substitutions of the athletes; substitutions of any other persons are not allowed.
 - Substitutions are not possible after the end of the application period specified in paragraph 4 of Chapter 5 hereof.
- 10. By submitting the application for participation in the GotF 2025 and receiving approval to participate, an individual (or legal entity) agrees to abide by the terms, conditions, and requirements of the Rules and Regulations and accepts the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025 (provided in the ANNEX 2 to the Rules and Regulations). Thereby, a person (or legal entity) adheres to all the Regulatory Documents of PI and HCA counterparties governing the GotF 2025.

Applications for participation in the GotF 2025 may be submitted by both individuals (athletes) and legal entities (e.g., Sports Clubs, Sports Teams) taking part in the GotF 2025 and by other third parties who are not participants in the GotF 2025 but provide athletes (teams of athletes) for participation in the GotF 2025 on behalf of PI.

Chapter 5. Admission to the GotF 2025

- 1. Participants are admitted to the GotF 2025 subject to an application being submitted under the procedure and conditions stipulated by the Rules and Regulations, its approval by PI (or a third person authorized by PI), and/or subject to the participant being invited directly under the procedure stipulated by paragraph 7 of Chapter 4 hereof.
- 2. Participation in the GotF 2025 is permitted for individuals who are at least 16 years old at the time of submitting their application for participation in the GotF 2025 (a direct invitation is sent as specified in paragraph 7 of Chapter 4 hereof). However, upon a written motivated request from the applicant, PI may grant an exception and allow a person under 16 years of age to participate in the GotF 2025. Any alternative minimum age requirements for participation in the GotF 2025 may be established in the Technical Rules.
- 3. Only persons who acknowledge the Regulatory Documents and other documents of PI are eligible to participate in the GotF 2025.

Applications for participation in the GotF 2025 must be submitted using the form provided in the ANNEX 1 to these Rules and Regulations.

Both individuals and legal entities may submit applications for participation in the GotF 2025, provided that the participant (or team of participants) meets the requirements specified in these Rules and Regulations.

Applications may be submitted for participation in the GotF 2025 in one or more Sports (Sports disciplines) within the framework of the GotF 2025.

- 4. Applications for participation in the GotF 2025 must be submitted no later than 30 (Thirty) days prior to the start date of the GotF 2025.
- 5. Participants in the GotF 2025 are required to provide PI (or third parties authorized by PI) with all the necessary and reliable information in the required volume.
- 6. The fully completed application for participation in the GotF 2025, along with all required supporting documents), must be sent to the e-mail: competition@phygitalinternational.com.
- 7. The application for participation in the GotF 2025 may specify a list of documents that each applicant must provide in full by attaching them to the application (including all necessary declarations and warranties signed by the participant).

The list of documents to be attached may include, but is not limited to:

- Acknowledgement of Understanding (except for the team's staff);
- Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement (except for the team's staff);
- Travel insurance:
- Medical certificate (except for the team's staff);
- Consent to the processing of personal data;
- Parents' (legal representative's) consent (if applicable).
- 8. PI reserves the right to refuse acceptance of an application if there are violations of the Rules and Regulations and/or the Regulatory Documents, if the submitted information is incomplete or inaccurate, or if the applicant's participation could harm the GotF 2025's reputation or image of the GotF 2025, as well as in other cases at the sole discretion of PI.
- 9. PI has the right to deny access to the GotF 2025 if the account names (nicknames) or team names:
 - are protected by the copyright of a third party (in the absence of a written permission from the copyright holder);

##

- are similar or identical to the nicknames of other participants or the names of other teams;
- are similar or identical to the nicknames of the GotF 2025 officials;
- contain an obscene, indecent, offensive, or provocative language or meaning.
- 10. By submitting an application and agreeing to the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the applicant acknowledges and confirms familiarity with the Regulatory Documents and undertakes to comply with them.
- 11. If a GotF 2025 participant is under 21 years of age at the application submission for participation in the GotF, a written permission to participate, signed by their legal representatives and in the form provided in the ANNEX 3 to the Rules and Regulations, must be submitted to PI (or a third party authorized by PI).
- 12. Participation in GotF 2025 is permitted only if the participant submits an original travel insurance policy (covering life and health insurance against accidents) to PI. A sports insurance policy is recommended, unless PI determines it is mandatory for certain Sports (Sports disciplines).
 - The insurance policy must be valid for the entire duration of GotF 2025. Insurance costs are borne by the participants, who are also responsible for ensuring the adequacy of the insurance coverage.
- 13. All participants must communicate and correspond with referees, the GotF 2025 officials, and other participants in English. If unable to communicate in English, participants are required to use the services of an interpreter.

Chapter 6. GotF 2025 Venue and Dates

1. The GotF 2025 venue:

No.	Discipline name	Dates	Competition Venue name	Competition Venue address
1.	Phygital Football	December 18, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
2.	Phygital Basketball	December 18, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
3.	Phygital Fighting	December 22, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
4.	Phygital Dancing	December 21, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
5.	Phygital Shooter. 5- on-5	December 20, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
6.	Battle Royale	December 18, 2025 - December 19, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
7.	MOBA PC	December 14, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
			Pixoul Gaming	Al Qana Walk, AI Khaleej AI Arab street, Rabdan Area, Abu Dhabi, UAE
8.	MOBA Mobile	December 18, 2025 - December 23, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
			Pixoul Gaming	Al Qana Walk, AI Khaleej AI Arab street, Rabdan Area, Abu Dhabi, UAE

9.	Drone Racing	December 20, 2025 - December 22, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
10.	VR-game	December 22, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
11.	Battle of Robots	December 18, 2025 - December 20, 2025	ADNEC Centre Abu Dhabi	Khaleej Al Arabi Street, P.O. Box 5546, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates

2. The GotF 2025 will be held from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025.

The date of the Opening Ceremony is on December 17, 2025.

The date of the Closing Ceremony is on December 23, 2025.

- 3. PI reserves the right to change the locations and dates of the GotF 2025. Any changes will be announced on the Official GotF 2025 website for the information of all concerned parties.
- 4. The schedule for matches, fights, races, and other events of the GotF 2025 ("the GotF 2025 schedule") will be determined by PI and/or by decision of the Chief Panel of Judges and may be changed at the sole discretion of PI and/or the Chief Panel of Judges.

Chapter 7. GotF 2025 Structure and System

- 1. The GotF 2025 will be conducted according to the calendar and schedule established by PI.
- 2. The GotF 2025 is integrated (multi-disciplinary) event, encompassing various Sports (Sports disciplines).
- 3. The specific procedures and characteristics for holding the GotF 2025 within particular Sports (Sports disciplines) are defined by the Technical Rules approved by PI. In the event of any contradiction, the Technical Rules take precedence over the Rules of Sports (Sports disciplines).
- 4. The GotF 2025 will be held both in an interdisciplinary double-event format (integrated contests pairing Sports (Sports disciplines)) and in contests for single Sports (Sports disciplines). The program of the GotF 2025 specifies the Sports (Sports disciplines) included and the pairs that constitute the interdisciplinary double-events, as determined and approved by PI.
- 5. The GotF 2025 features both individual and team competitions: the places are distributed among individual athletes and the teams they form.
 - Participants will be ranked separately in each interdisciplinary double-event and in each single Sport (Sports discipline) competition.
- 6. The GotF 2025 and its events (matches, fights, races, etc.) will be conducted in accordance with the Regulatory Documents. If needed, additional features for the GotF 2025 and its events may be established by PI and/or by decision of the Chief Panel of Judges.
- 7. The procedure for determining winners and awarding places is specified in the Technical Rules.
- 8. Any issues concerning the structure and system of the GotF 2025 not addressed by these Rules and Regulations will be resolved by PI in accordance with the Regulatory Documents and the applicable laws.

Chapter 8. Awarding

- 1. The winners and prize-winners of the GotF 2025 are determined in accordance with the Technical Rules.
- 2. Winner(s) are awarded the title of Champion of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" in the respective Competition Discipline.
- 3. Winner(s) receive a special prize for first place and a monetary prize. Only one special prize is awarded per Competition Discipline.
- 4. The amount, timing, and procedure for the payout of monetary prizes are determined by the Regulations on the GotF 2025 Prize Pool and, as necessary, by other documents or decisions issued by PI.

Chapter 9. Funding

- 1. The overall funding of the organization and holding of the GotF 2025 is carried out in accordance with the Agreement.
- 2. The refereeing work performed by referees at the GotF 2025 is remunerated by PI.

Chapter 10. Provision of Safety, Medical and Anti-Doping Measures

- 1. The main goal of ensuring safety is to create conditions for the smooth running of the GotF 2025, to preserve the life and health of participants and spectators, and to neutralize threats arising during the preparation stage and throughout the GotF 2025.
- 2. Public order and public safety during the GotF 2025 shall be ensured by the HCA counterparties in cooperation with PI, the owners and users of the GotF 2025 venues, in accordance with the Agreement and with the assistance of the relevant authorities duly authorized to address security issues.
- 3. Organization of public order and public safety during the GotF 2025 shall meet the requirements established by the applicable laws.
- 4. The GotF 2025 is held at venues (as well as at facilities, courses, and structures, including temporary ones), as well as on the sites specially prepared for the GotF 2025 that meet the requirements of the Regulatory Documents on the safety of sports events.
- 5. Emergency medical services are provided in accordance with the applicable laws.
- 6. In view of the current epidemiological situation, all participants must adhere to the medical recommendations for the prevention of viral infections, including COVID-19, as set out in the Regulatory Documents.

Chapter 11. Rights and Duties of PI

1. The Obligations of PI:

- To organize and hold the GotF 2025 in accordance with the Agreement and the Regulatory Documents:
- To approve the GotF 2025's format and calendar;
- To draft regulations, rules, and regulations, as well as to draft other documents necessary for the organization and holding of the GotF 2025, and to approve them;
- To compile and approve the roster of the GotF 2025 participants;
- To recognize and comply with the requirements of the Regulatory Documents in line with the requirements of the applicable laws;
- To register the GotF 2025's results;
- To ensure and fund compensation payments and logistical support for referees participating in the GotF 2025;
- To undertake any other actions within its authority that are necessary for the high-standard organization, conduct, and media coverage of the GotF 2025.
- 1.1. PI's obligations may be revised, itemized, and/or redistributed in accordance with the Agreement and/or other agreements concluded between PI and the HCA counterparties.

2. The Rights of PI:

- To draft the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, as well as other documents necessary for the organization and holding of the GotF 2025;
- To work out the GotF 2025's format and calendar;
- To compile and approve the preliminary roster of the GotF 2025 participants;
- To determine and approve the reward amount (prize pool) awarded to the GotF 2025 winners and participants;
- To develop and approve the names of the GotF 2025, as well as logos and other official symbols of the GotF 2025; to approve the official trophies and awards, including the GotF 2025's souvenir products;
- To approve the manufacturers of the sports outfit, equipment, and gear used during the GotF 2025;
- To organize and conduct commercial, media, advertising, and other events aimed at promoting the GotF 2025;
- To negotiate with potential sponsors of the GotF 2025 and enter into respective sponsorship agreements;
- To cover the GotF 2025s by broadcasting images and/or sound by any means and/or using any technology, as well as by recording said broadcasts and/or taking photographs of the GotF 2025;
- To grant third parties the rights to cover the GotF 2025 by broadcasting images and/or sound by any means and/or using any technology, as well as by recording said broadcasts and/or taking photographs of the GotF 2025;
- To engage third parties to exercise their rights and obligations associated with organizing and holding the GotF 2025;
- To organize and conduct advertising and PR campaigns in order to promote the GotF 2025;

##

- To appoint and approve referees and other officials to officiate the GotF 2025;
- To ensure, including through engaging third parties, the placement and distribution of the GotF 2025 advertisements, the GotF 2025 sponsors' and partners' advertisements during the broadcasting of the GotF 2025, at the GotF 2025 venues, as well as to provide advertising campaigns, special marketing events and other activities of the sponsors, partners of the GotF 2025 throughout the GotF 2025;
- To provide media coverage for the GotF 2025 using specialized media resources, Internet resources, and other information resources;
- To independently use the names, logos and other official elements of the GotF 2025 for advertising, commercial, and other purposes;
- To exercise the GotF 2025's Commercial Rights;
- To exercise other rights necessary for organizing and holding the GotF 2025 to high standards where sports skills, organization, and media aspects are concerned, not expressly provided for by this Agreement, not contradicting the provisions of the applicable law, and the GoTF 2025's Regulatory Documents.
- 2.1. PI's rights may be revised, itemized, and/or redistributed in accordance with the Agreement and/or other agreements concluded between PI and the HCA counterparties.

Chapter 11.1. Commercial, Image and Other Property Rights Related to the GotF 2025 Commercial Rights. General Terms.

- 1. For the purposes of the Rules and Regulations, the term "Commercial Rights" arising in connection with the organization of the GotF 2025 shall mean:
 - The right to cover the GotF 2025 by way of broadcasting the images and/or sounds by any means and/or using any technology, as well as by way of recording said broadcasts and/or taking photos of the GotF 2025 ("the GoTF 2025 Coverage Right");
 - The right to use the name, logo, and other official designations of the GotF 2025 for advertising and commercial purposes;
 - The right to appoint official sponsors and partners of the GotF 2025, as well as the right to appoint title sponsors of the GotF 2025;
 - The right to place advertisements of goods, works and services during the GotF 2025 broadcast and on the sports facilities, in particular: on the advertising structures installed inside and outside of the sports facilities, with account for the restrictions provided for by the applicable law for certain types of goods, works and services;
 - The right to organize commercial, information, promotional, and other events;
 - Other rights directly or indirectly arising out of the above rights.
- 2. The Commercial Rights are wholly owned by PI. At its sole discretion, PI has the right to independently determine the procedure for using the Commercial Rights and delegate its rights to third parties, in whole or in part.
- 3. The Commercial Rights are the exclusive property of PI. PI has the sole discretion to determine how the Commercial Rights are used and may delegate or assign such rights, in whole or in part, to third parties.
- 4. All exclusive rights to video, audio recordings, photographs of the GotF 2025, interview broadcasts, and other copyright and related rights objects created by PI in connection with the event are owned by PI, unless otherwise specified in agreements entered into by PI with third parties.

GotF 2025 Coverage Right

- 1. PI exercises the right to cover the GotF 2025 either independently or by engaging third parties for this purpose, in accordance with established procedures.
- 2. The GotF 2025 participants shall respect the GotF 2025 Coverage Right and shall not violate the same, in particular, they are obligated:
 - To cover the GotF 2025 on its own or by engaging third parties as agreed with PI, and shall not interfere in any way with the process of PI's exercise of this right;
 - Not transfer any intellectual property created during the GotF 2025 to third parties (mass media, personal sponsors, partners, etc.) without obtaining prior written consent from PI;
 - Not change or edit any intellectual property created during the GotF 2025 to the extent when they lose their association with the GotF 2025 or get associated with third parties, in particular, shall not remove and/or change logos, names and other means of identification of the GotF 2025 (especially names of the disciplines and the GotF 2025, which might include specific partner's naming), PI, sponsors and partners of the GotF 2025 and/or PI, as well as shall not add logos, names and other means of identification of third parties, including their sponsors and partners and shall not edit logos, names and other means of identification which have been excluded (blurred, covered, erased, etc.) due to regulatory or contractual obligations (such as, but not limited to restricted sponsors);

- Not use AI in any way or form to change or edit intellectual property created during the GotF 2025.
- 3. In order to facilitate proper coverage of the GotF 2025, all participants must take reasonable and good faith measures to ensure the accurate and appropriate use of the official names and emblem (logo) of the GotF 2025. This obligation applies both to their own communications and in cooperation with third parties, including mass media, particularly when posting information about the GotF 2025.

Image Rights

- 1. When applying for participation in the GotF 2025, the participants are obligated:
 - To grant PI the rights to use, provide (transfer) to third parties, reproduce, on a gratuitous basis, their image (photo, video), including graphic and any other image, as well as appearance and its constituent elements, stylized and photographic images, movements, symbols and other visual attributes of identification; surname, name, patronymic, pseudonym; voice, autograph; any other attributes of identification ("the Participants' Image Rights"), unless otherwise provided for in the agreement executed with the GotF 2025 Participants. These rights may be used for commercial purposes, subject to a relevant additional agreement with the Participants;
 - To provide consent to taking photos and video shooting of the GotF 2025 in which he/she takes part and to further public broadcasting and rebroadcasting of the GotF 2025 records by any means on PI's on-line resources, via linear TV broadcasts, on OTT platforms, in social media or any other sources and by making them publicly available, in particular, for commercial purposes;
 - To ensure that all intellectual property rights to the property and any materials covering their participation created during the GotF 2025 are transferred to PI;
 - To grant PI the right to use the name, logo, and other official designations of the team, in particular during the GotF 2025 broadcast, on the Sports Facilities and their equipment during the GotF 2025, as well as for information and other non-commercial purposes.
- 2. The consent and rights granted by the participants to PI under paragraph 1 of Part 3 hereof are:
 - On a non-exclusive basis;
 - For a variety of purposes, including, but not limited to, commercial, marketing, advertising, informational, and any other commercial or non-commercial activities;
 - In their entirety, in parts, or in any combination thereof;
 - Without any limitations regarding the duration of use or geographical territory (applicable worldwide); and
 - Without any obligation for PI to make payments to the Participant.
- 3. PI is entitled to use the Participants' Image Rights, as well as the names, logos, trademarks of the teams at its sole discretion including, but not limited to, reproduction, distribution, broadcasting, cablecasting, publicizing, processing by any means of technology (photos, video records), and to create any intellectual property using these items.
- 4. The GotF 2025 participants shall not prevent creation and/or use by any means (including but not limited to reproduction, distribution, broadcasting, cablecasting, publicizing, processing) and/or by any technology of images of the GotF 2025 participant(s) (photos, video records), including graphic and any other image, full name (surname, patronymic, name), voice, pseudonym, signature and handwriting samples, external appearance and its components, images of tattoos, stylized and photographic images, tag lines, statements, popular expressions, symbols, movements and other attributes of identification.

5. The GotF 2025 Participants shall assist PI in exercising its right to use the Participants' Image Rights, names, logos, and trademarks of the teams, and shall not impede PI's lawful use of these rights.

Sponsors, Partners of the GotF 2025 and of the GotF 2025 Participants

- 1. The right to appoint official sponsors and partners of the GotF 2025, including title sponsors, is exercised by PI independently or through third parties, in accordance with established procedures.
- 2. By submitting an application for participation in the GotF 2025, the participants acknowledge existence of PI's obligations to the sponsors and partners of the GotF 2025 and/or PI and guarantee, on their part, performance of actions aimed at the fulfillment of the respective obligations, and shall also refrain from impeding fulfillment thereof, as set forth in the Rules and Regulations.
- 3. PI acknowledges participants' rights to interact with their personal sponsors and partners and will ensure participants can meet their obligations to such parties, provided these interactions comply with the restrictions and requirements of the Rules and Regulations. Participants' interactions with personal sponsors and partners must not interfere with PI's Commercial Rights, create conflicts of interest within product categories, or violate applicable law or the requirements of video game developers (rights holders).
- 4. For the aforesaid purposes, the GotF 2025 participants shall maintain the exclusivity of rights granted by PI to the GotF 2025 sponsors and partners. In particular, participants shall not enter into agreements (contracts, arrangements, etc.) that may limit or prevent the use of rights granted to GotF 2025 sponsors and partners and/or PI.
- 5. GotF 2025 participants must inform PI in writing of their sponsors and partners (specifying the counterparty/brand name, contract term, product category, and whether exclusivity obligations exist) at the time of submitting their application for participation. Participants must disclose all sponsor and partner obligations existing at the date of application, as well as those effective during or after the GotF 2025 that relate to the event.
- 6. During the GotF 2025, the participants must notify PI of prospective sponsors or partners before entering into relevant agreements and must finalize such agreements only with PI's written approval. Participants must also notify PI of any logo or trademark owners interested in cooperating with or sponsoring them, or in using their image, clothing, etc., for advertising or other purposes during their participation in GotF 2025.
- 7. PI reserves the right to exclude participants from the GotF 2025 if their sponsors or partners violate the exclusivity terms of the GotF 2025 sponsors or partners, breach applicable law, violate advertising morality standards, or fail to meet the requirements of video game developers (rights holders).
- 8. The GotF 2025 participants bear sole responsibility for complying with advertising laws and video game developer (rights holder) requirements in fulfilling obligations to their personal sponsors and partners.

Participants' Uniform and Outfit; Additional Equipment/Gear

1. PI shall approve the list of Sports (Sports disciplines) for which it will provide the GotF 2025 participants with the required uniform, outfit, equipment, and gear, according to the specific requirements of each discipline.

For Sports (Sports disciplines) not included in PI-approved list, the GotF 2025 participants must use their own personal uniform, outfit, equipment, and gear, subject to the provisions outlined in the Rules and Regulations. PI retains the right to designate the manufacturer of personal uniform, outfit, equipment, and gear used by participants, and may establish additional requirements for such items.

- 2. Along with their application for participation in the GotF 2025, the participants shall submit to PI for approval the designs of the uniform, outfit, equipment, and gear, specifying all decorations, including sponsors and partners designations are to be placed on the uniform and outfit, equipment and gear. PI may provide comments on these designs of the uniform and outfit, equipment, and gear, and set a deadline for for corrective actions, particularly regarding sponsor and partner markings. If a participant fails to address the identified shortcomings within the specified timeframe, PI reserves the right to refuse admission to the GotF 2025.
- 3. During GotF 2025, PI shall monitor conformity of participants' uniform, outfit, equipment, and gear with the designs and requirements previously approved. If any item does not comply, PI will report the matter to the Chief Panel of Judges (CPJ). Based on this information, the CPJ may refuse admission to GotF 2025 and impose relevant sanctions, including forfeiture, if the participant declines to correct the violation.
- 4. For the purposes of the Rules and Regulations:
 - Term "uniform" refers to any type of uniform used by the GotF 2025 participants (including sports, game, training, and dress uniforms), unless otherwise expressly provided in these Rules and Regulations or the Regulatory Documents;
 - Term "outfit" refers to any personal protective equipment, footwear, or other gear (including devices such as gamepads, keyboards, PC mouse devices, etc.) used by the GotF 2025 participant, taking into account the specific requirements of the Sports (Sports discipline) in which the athlete is competing, unless otherwise expressly provided in these Rules and Regulations or the Regulatory Documents.

Sponsor and Promotional Events, Communications

- 1. GotF 2025 participants shall take part in all events related to the GotF 2025—including media events, media days, autograph sessions, sponsor activations, promotional activities, briefings, and interviews (including flash interviews)—as directed by PI, provided that sports and training activities are not disrupted. Participants must use approved uniforms, outfits, gear, and equipment for these activities. PI will provide all necessary information to participants in writing or through direct communication with the participants or their representatives.
- 2. Participants must not engage in any activities, communications, or undertakings that result in, or may result in, the dissociation of rights associated with the GotF 2025, or that may infringe upon the rights of third parties to be associated with the GotF 2025, as granted by PI under relevant agreements.
- 3. The GotF 2025 participants shall refrain from any actions or inactions, including statements or remarks, that may negatively affect the image or reputation of the GotF 2025, PI, and/ or any sponsor, advertiser, marketing partner, and/or any other party, individual, legal entity, country, or culture. Participants must not insult or show disrespect toward these parties.
- 4. The GotF 2025 participants shall appoint a team contact person responsible for media and promotional activities to facilitate prompt interaction with PI. The designated contact person will serve as the primary liaison for all media-related inquiries. The contact person shall be responsible for facilitating timely communication regarding promotional activities.
- 5. During any communications with the mass media representatives (as well as unregistered as such print, television, radio, Internet-publishers, social networks and other media resources), during any public speeches, while participating in the GotF 2025, during any organizational activities of PI (photo sessions, autograph signing sessions, weigh-ins, etc.), as well as when publishing any content on their Internet social pages, the GotF 2025 participants must avoid judgement (both positive and negative), refrain from behavior and actions of any kind (as well as applying certain tattoos, the use of certain attributes, gestures relating to politics or to any political event: symbols, flags, color combinations; the use of music and other sounds for appropriate purposes, etc.) in relation to any political events, organizations and actions by political actors, and strictly observe

- the political neutrality principle (Sports beyond Politics), including the principles set out in the Olympic Charter.
- 6. PI reserves the right to exclude participants from the GotF 2025 for any violations of the obligations and requirements stated in this Article, including non-participation in any events directed by PI or breaches related to PI's execution of its obligations, etc.

Chapter 12. Obligations of the GotF 2025 Participants

- 1. The GotF 2025 participants must act humanely, observing social norms and societal standards, adhere to generally accepted rules of conduct, maintain discipline, and show respect to other participants, referees, officials, press representatives, and all other parties, nations, and cultures. Participants must comply with general standards of conduct as established by the applicable laws.
- 2. The GotF 2025 participants must unconditionally obey the requirements of PI, referees, other officials of the GotF 2025 and the HCA counterparties, provided such requirements do not conflict with the Regulatory Documents and the applicable laws.
- 3. The GotF 2025 participants must maintain confidentiality when communicating with officials of the GotF 2025. All texts written as part of applications, complaints, protests, or appeals are confidential and shall not be published without PI's written permission.
- 4. The GotF 2025 participants must comply with the Regulatory Documents, obligations stipulated by the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, and other documents approved by PI.
- 5. The GotF 2025 participants are forbidden from using any items, equipment, or gear not authorized by the Regulatory Documents, as well as any items that may pose a potential danger to the life and/or health of others and/or themselves.

The GotF 2025 participants are prohibited from using any software that affects the in-game mechanics of computer games (used during the GotF 2025), including any software designed to change in-game parameters with a view to gaining an advantage over opponents and/or hindering the normal course of the game, thus creating obstacles to their opponents (i.e., cheat codes, etc.).

Athletes participating in Sports (Sports disciplines) involving computer games must use the same licensed game account and the same game nickname throughout GotF 2025. The use of several accounts by one athlete, as well as the use of the same account by several athletes, is prohibited. Any action aimed at transferring the game account to a third party is prohibited. Any other actions that violate the software usage rules (license agreements, user agreements, etc.) established by the rightsholders and/or developers of the respective computer games used during the GotF 2025 are prohibited. The athlete must immediately inform the referees of any changes to the account interaction and report when access to the account is lost.

- 6. The GotF 2025 participants must refrain from using insulting, abusive, and offensive language, gestures, and actions.
- 7. The GotF 2025 participants must respect the principles of sportsmanship and fair play.
- 8. During any communications with the mass media representatives (as well as unregistered as such print, television, radio, Internet-publishers, social networks and other media resources), during any public speeches, while participating in the GotF 2025, any organizational activities of PI (photo sessions, autograph sessions, weigh-ins, etc.), as well as when publishing any content on their Internet social pages, the GotF 2025 participants must avoid judgement (both positive and negative), refrain from behavior and actions of any kind (as well as applying certain tattoos, the use of certain attributes, gestures relating to politics or to any political events: symbols, flags, color combinations; the use of music and other sounds for appropriate purposes, etc.) in relation to any political events, organizations and actions by political actors, and strictly observe the political neutrality principle (Sports beyond Politics), including the principles set out in the Olympic Charter.
- 9. The GotF 2025 participants must comply with safety rules, and equipment operation procedures, and anti-doping requirements.
- 10. The GotF 2025 participants undertake to observe the dress code and other requirements for their appearance in the GotF 2025, as determined by PI (which may also be established in the Technical Rules).

- 11. The GotF 2025 participants must use the sports equipment provided by PI (if such is provided).
- 12. The GotF 2025 participants are not allowed:
 - To use physical force, as well as any threatening actions towards the officials, referees, spectators, representatives of the press, as well as towards other GotF 2025 participants (except for cases when the use of physical force by a GotF 2025 participant is necessary according to the Regulatory Documents);
 - To disable or otherwise damage sports gear and equipment;
 - To interfere with the work of referees and other officials;
 - To interfere in any way with the competitive process, disrupting its normal course;
 - To commit other actions interfering with the normal organization and staging of the GotF 2025 that are in contradiction to the Regulatory Documents and other documents of PI;
 - To collude with each other.

Any participants found to have colluded at any stage of the GotF 2025 will be disqualified from the GotF 2025 and will be required to return any compensation and prizes received by them from PI and third parties in connection with their participation in the GotF 2025.

Examples of collusion shall include, inter alia:

- Intentional loss for any reason;
- Rigged matches in any form;
- Agreement to share the prize money.
- 13. In view of the current epidemiological situation, the GotF 2025 participants must adhere to the medical recommendations for the prevention of viral infections, including COVID-19, as set out in the Regulatory Documents.
- 14. The GotF 2025 participants undertake to fulfill other obligations and comply with requirements stipulated in the Regulatory Documents and other documents of PI/the HCA counterparties/Chief Panel of Judges. Additional obligations of the GotF 2025 participants may be determined by the Regulatory Documents, including, but not limited to, the Technical Rules, as well as other documents of PI/Chief Panel of Judges.

Chapter 13. Refereeing

- 1. The Chief Panel of Judges and the Referee Panels, composed of referees approved by PI, are responsible for officiating the GotF 2025.
- 2. The rights and duties of the Chief Panel of Judges and the Referee Panels, and their representatives will be further defined by PI in a separately approved document.
- 3. PI will determine the names, positions, and the number of members serving on the Chief Panel of Judges and the Referee Panels.
- 4. Brigades of referees shall directly officiate matches/fights/races, etc. Their composition, rights, and duties will be determined by PI.
- 5. PI will approve the referees' uniform kit.
- 6. All GotF 2025 referees are prohibited from gambling with bookmakers and totalizators through betting.
- 7. Referees may be suspended from officiating the GotF 2025 for a period specified by PI if they fail to satisfactorily perform their duties, as required by the Regulatory Documents.

Chapter 14. Disciplinary Infractions and Sports Sanctions

- 1. The GotF 2025 participants who violate the Regulatory Documents of the GotF 2025 may be subject to sports liability as prescribed by the Regulatory Documents and other documents of PI, including by the authorized body of PI or any body recognized by PI. The list of penalties and sanctions is provided in ANNEX 4 to these Rules and Regulations.
- 2. PI recognizes the WPC Disciplinary Regulations and the jurisdiction of the WPC Disciplinary Committee. Accordingly, these regulations may also be applied to impose sporting sanctions on GotF 2025 participants, as appropriate.

For clarity, there are two separate, independent judicial bodies within the disciplinary system, each with distinct roles, operational procedures, and powers, that are authorized to impose sports sanctions:

- (1) **The Chief Panel of Judges (CPJ)** is the central professional operational judging body for the GotF 2025, operating during and immediately following competition phases ("after the whistle"). The CPJ reviews the match protocol and incident. It can decide to extend the disqualification for the remainder of the specific tournament (e.g., Games of the Future 2025), formalizing this in its protocol, which is then sent to the WPC Disciplinary Committee for its information; and
- (2) The WPC Disciplinary Committee is a non-operational, collegial appellate and disciplinary body of WPC, operating under the WPC Disciplinary Regulations. The WPC Disciplinary Committee reviews cases from the perspective of the broader Competition tournament ecosystem and the long-term integrity of Phygital Sports.

Primary Tasks of the CPJ:

- Prompt, on-site review of disputes, protests, and referee decisions from matches.
- Evaluation of on-field officiating quality.
- Application of immediate sporting sanctions (e.g., warnings, fines, prize pool deductions) as per the Regulations.
- Recording all decisions in official competition protocols.

The CPJ is not an appellate body and does not review its own final decisions. Its mandate is concluded upon the formal submission of a case file to the DC.

Primary Tasks of the WPC Disciplinary Committee:

- Review of appeals against final decisions of the CPJ.
- Adjudication of complex non-operational matters (e.g., ethics, finance, policy, reputational cases).
- Imposition of additional or extended sanctions based on CPJ findings.

The WPC Disciplinary Committee may only consider cases for which a final decision and official protocol have been issued by the CPJ. The DC cannot initiate proceedings for incidents without a corresponding CPJ record.

- 3. If a GotF 2025 participant commits a violation not expressly provided for in the Regulatory Documents, PI may impose any sports sanction provided for therein, guided by legal precedent, statutory analogy, and the principles of good faith, reasonableness, and fairness.
- 4. PI has the right to develop, approve and/or recognize a separate regulatory document specifying:
 - Types of sports sanctions;
 - Procedure for imposing and enforcing sports sanctions, including limitation periods for liability;

- Circumstances for suspension or exemption from sanctions;
- Procedure for appealing against decisions on the imposition of sports sanctions; Procedure for the formation of and the activities performed by the bodies (individuals) applying (imposing) the relevant sports sanctions.
- 5. PI has the right to develop and/or recognize any judicial body authorized to impose sports sanctions according to the procedure provided in this Chapter.

Chapter 15. Appeals

- 1. An appeal against the result of a match/fight/race, etc. ("the Appeal") may be filed by a team representative or athlete in connection with a violation of the Regulatory Documents, namely:
 - Violation of a specific article or a paragraph of the Rules of Sports (Sports disciplines);
 - Absence of equal conditions for athletes during a match/fight/race, etc.;
 - Wrongful actions of the referee(s);
 - Failure by the referee(s) to address systematic acts of misconduct by participants, which did not result in disciplinary measures.
- 2. Appeals must be submitted in writing to the Chief Panel of Judges within 15 (Fifteen) minutes of the conclusion of the match/fight/race. Appeals must clearly state and corroborate the grounds for its submission.
- 3. The Chief Panel of Judges will consider the Appeal within 1 (One) hour of its receipt.
- 4. The Chief Panel of Judges will make its decision by simple majority vote.
- 5. The Head Referee will communicate the decision of the Chief Panel of Judges regarding the Appeal to the representatives of the GotF 2025 participants involved in the appealed event, and/or to the participants themselves.
- 6. The decision of the Chief Panel of Judges is final and binding upon the parties from the moment of their announcement.
- 7. Decisions of the CPJ may be appealed to the WPC Disciplinary Committee in accordance with the procedure outlined herein. Sanctions will also be imposed in accordance with the WPC Disciplinary Regulations and the Regulatory Documents.

The WPC Disciplinary Committee's review process is as follows:

- The WPC Disciplinary Committee considers only cases that have been previously examined and formally submitted by the CPJ.
- The WPC Disciplinary Committee reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to decline to review any case if the submitted appeal or petition is inadmissible, lacks substantiated arguments, or fails to comply with the formal requirements stipulated by the applicable regulations and at its own discretion.
- If the WPC Disciplinary Committee agrees to proceed with a case, it may exercise the following powers:
 - (a) Uphold the decision of the CPJ and dismiss the appeal or petition; or
 - (b) Overturn the ruling of the CPJ, in whole or in part, and issue a new decision.
- 8. If the Rules of Sports (Sports disciplines) or the Technical Rules specify a different procedure for filing and/or considering an Appeal, the procedures set out in these Rules and Regulations shall apply.

Chapter 16. Dispute Resolution

- 1. Any disputes, controversies or claims in connection with holding and/or participation in the GotF 2025, or otherwise arising from the Rules and Regulations, between the subjects of the GotF 2025, as well as other persons and/or with the participation of other persons who have expressed their will to be bound by the Rules and Regulations and this arbitration agreement, (jointly "the Parties", and separately "the Party"), shall be settled by the Parties through negotiations.
- 2. If the Parties fail to reach a settlement through negotiations within 30 (Thirty) days from the date a dispute arises, any of the Parties may refer to and finally resolved by arbitration under the Arbitration Rules of the London Court of International Arbitration, which Rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Article.

The number of arbitrators shall be three.

The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be the DIFC.

The language to be used in the arbitration shall be English.

The governing law of the arbitration agreement shall be the substantive laws of England and Wales.

Chapter 17. Final Provisions

- 1. These Rules and Regulations take effect upon approval by PI. Any amendments or additions to the Rules and Regulations are approved by PI and come into force immediately upon approval, unless otherwise specified by PI, without the need for additional notification to participants.
- 2. Matters not addressed by these Rules and Regulations shall be resolved in accordance with the Technical Rules, the Rules of the respective Sports (Sports disciplines), decisions issued by the Chief Panel of Judges and/or the WPC Disciplinary Committee, and other applicable Regulatory Documents.
- 3. In case of discrepancies between the Rules and Regulations, the Technical Rules, the Rules of the respective Sports (Sports disciplines), and the Regulatory Documents, the interpretation and final resolution of such discrepancies shall be determined by PI (or the Chief Panel of Judges). In making such determinations, PI will be guided by legal precedent, statutory analogy, and the principles of good faith, reasonableness, and fairness.

ANNEX 1

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE GOTF 2025 (Form)

##

APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

1. "	" ("the Participant" or "the Team"), represented by its
authorized signatory	, hereby acknowledges that the procedures and conditions for
their participation in the GotF 2025 (the International Multi	isport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held from December
14, 2025, to December 23, 2025) are determined by the	Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and
Regulations, and the Regulatory Documents.	

All provisions in this Application for Participation ("the Application") apply to every member of the Participant's team.

The Participant will be admitted to participate in the GotF 2025 in accordance with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents approved by PI.

- 2. For the preparation of documentation and the admission by PI, the Participant shall provide PI with the documents for every member of the Team as defined by the Conditions for Participation in the GoTF 2025 and the Rules and Regulations, and shall be responsible for the accuracy of the information contained in the documents provided by all of the Team members.
 - 3. Being a participant of the GotF 2025, the Team guarantees that members of the Team undertake:
- comply with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory
 Documents, all provisions of the GotF 2025 regulations and any other documents related to the GotF 2025, as well as all regulations and standards approved by PI and HCA counterparties;
 - participate in GotF 2025 in accordance with the Rules and Regulations and the Technical Rules;
 - not violate the status of a GoTF 2025 participant and comply with the requirements set for participants;
 - not violate anti-doping rules and to submit to doping control as required if applicable;
 - comply with sports ethical standards;
- not accept personally or through relatives and/or other persons, any monetary rewards and/or property (non-property) benefits from any legal entities and/or individuals for achieving certain results in any stage of the GotF 2025 in an unsporting manner, or for attempting to unlawfully influence the result of any stage of the GotF 2025;
- not participate, personally or through relatives or other persons, in risk-based games and bets (including sweepstakes, betting organizations, etc.) related to the GotF 2025;
- show high discipline and respect for partners, opponents, GotF 2025 officials, PI and HCA counterparties and clubs, referees, and spectators;
- comply with the decisions of jurisdictional and other bodies recognized by PI, including those relating to competitors and the Participant;
- resolve any disputes arising from participation in the GotF 2025 exclusively through the relevant jurisdictional bodies according to Rules and Regulations.
- 4. The Participant voluntarily agrees that violations of the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents by the Participant shall be considered by PI's jurisdictional bodies (including jurisdictional bodies recognized by PI). These bodies are entitled to apply sports sanctions and measures established by the relevant regulations and documents of PI.
- 5. By signing this Application, the Participant adheres to the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations and the Regulatory Documents.
- 6. By signing this Application, the Participant confirms that all the prize pool payments due to the Participant shall be made to the bank details provided in this Application. For the avoidance of doubt, the Rules and Regulations and the Regulations on the prize pool and/or the Regulatory Documents set the basis for the payment. After receiving the prize pool payments on the bank details provided by this Application, the Participant confirms that PI's obligations for conducting prize pool payments shall be deemed completed according to p.3 of Article 14 of the Regulations on the GotF 2025 Prize Pool, and the Participant shall be solely responsible for transferring the amount of the prize pool payments to the Team members. In case of any conflict arising from the Team members, the Participant will independently resolve the said issue at their own expense and shall indemnify and defend PI against all payments and other obligations in respect of damages, claims, actions, losses, costs, expenses (including reasonably incurred outside counsel fees and expenses) and/or liabilities of any nature (including injury to persons or property) arising from the Team members due to the Participant's breach of obligations under this clause.
 - 7. Hereby, the Participant provides PI with the following documents on all members of the Team:
 - Acknowledgement of Understanding (except for the Team's staff);
 - Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement (except for the Team's staff);
 - Travel insurance;
 - Medical certificate (except for the Team's staff);
 - Consent to the processing of personal data;
 - Parents' (legal representative's) consent (if applicable).

For the following Competition Disciplines, the Participant is not required to submit a medical certificate: Battle Royale. Featuring Fortnite; MOBA PC. Dota 2; MOBA Mobile. MLBB; VR-game. HADO; Phygital Drone Racing; and Battle of Robots.

ing Fortilite; MODA PC. Dota 2; MODA Mobile. MLDD; V	R-game. HADO; Phyghai Drone Racing; and Dame of Robo
The Participant:	
-	Document date://2025
Address:	
TIN:	
Tax registration reason code:	
Payment account:	
Bank:	
SWIFT:	
Correspondent account:	

TEAM AND SPORTS DETAILS

Team name:

Discipline:

Position	Full name	Date of birth	Passport number	Signature
	<u> </u>			

By signing the Application for participation, each person-member of the Team agrees to the Conditions for Participation in GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, and all applicable Regulatory Documents, and undertakes to provide PI with the documents specified in the Application for participation.

By signing the Application for participation, each person-member of the Team confirms that all prize pool payments due to the Team and to themselves personally shall be made to the banking details provided in the Application. Upon making such payments, PI's obligations for prize pool payments shall be considered fully discharged. Any further obligations or internal transactions are the responsibility of the Participant towards the Team members. In the event of any dispute arising from this clause, Team members must address their complaints and resolve the dispute directly with the Participant.

##

APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

1		("the Participant"	or "the Athlete") hereby	y acknowledges
that the procedure	and conditions for their participation in the	GotF 2025 (the International	al Multisport Tournamen	t "Games of the
Future" to be hel	d from December 14, 2025, to December 23	, 2025) are determined by t	the Conditions for Part	icipation in the
GotF 2025, the R	ules and Regulations, and the Regulatory I	Documents.		_

The Participant shall be admitted to participate in the GotF 2025 in accordance with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents approved by PI.

- 2. For the preparation of documentation and the admission by PI, the Participant shall provide PI with the documents as defined by the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025 and the Rules and Regulations, and shall be responsible for the accuracy of the information contained in the documents provided.
 - 3. Being a participant of the GoTF 2025, the Athlete undertakes to:
- comply with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, all provisions of the GotF 2025 regulations and any other documents related to the GotF 2025, as well as all regulations and standards approved by PI and HCA counterparties;
 - participate in GotF 2025 in accordance with the Rules and Regulations and the Technical Rules;
 - not violate the status of a GoTF 2025 participant and comply with the requirements set for participants;
 - not violate anti-doping rules and to submit to doping control as required if applicable;
 - comply with sports ethical standards;
- not accept personally or through relatives and/or other persons, any monetary rewards and/or property (non-property) benefits from any legal entities and/or individuals for achieving certain results in any stage of the GotF 2025 in an unsporting manner, or for attempting to unlawfully influence the result of any stage of the GotF 2025;
- not participate, personally or through relatives or other persons, in risk-based games and bets (including sweepstakes, betting organizations, etc.) related to the GotF 2025;
- show high discipline and respect for partners, opponents, GotF 2025 officials, PI and HCA counterparties and clubs, referees, and spectators;
- comply with the decisions of jurisdictional and other bodies recognized by PI, including those relating to competitors and the Participant;
- resolve any disputes arising from participation in the GotF 2025 exclusively through the relevant jurisdictional bodies according to Rules and Regulations.
- 4. The Participant voluntarily agrees that violations of the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents by the Participant shall be considered by PI's jurisdictional bodies (including jurisdictional bodies recognized by PI). These bodies are entitled to apply sports sanctions and measures established by the relevant regulations and documents of PI.
- 5. By signing this Application, the Participant adheres to the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations and the Regulatory Documents.
- 6. Hereby, the Participant confirms that all the prize pool payments due to the Participant shall be made to the bank details provided in this Application. For the avoidance of doubt, the Rules and Regulations and the Regulations on the Prize Pool and/or the Regulatory Documents set the basis for the payment.
 - 7. Hereby, the Participant provides PI with the following documents:
 - Acknowledgement of Understanding (except for the team's staff);
 - Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement (except for the team's staff);
 - Travel insurance;
 - Medical certificate (except for the team's staff);
 - Consent to the processing of personal data;
 - Parents' (legal representative's) consent (if applicable).

For the following Competition Disciplines, the Participant is not required to submit a medical certificate: Battle Royale. Featuring Fortnite; MOBA PC. Dota 2; MOBA Mobile. MLBB; VR-game. HADO; Phygital Drone Racing; and Battle of Robots.

The Participant:	
	Document date://2025
Passport:	
Date of birth:	
Issued on:	
Address:	
TIN:	
Tax registration reason code:	
Payment account:	
Bank:	
SWIFT:	
Correspondent account:	

TEAM AND SPORTS DETAILS

Team name:

Position	Full name	Date of birth	Passport number

Discipline:

##

____/

APPLICATION FOR PARTICIPATION

1 "	"("the Participant" or "the Applicant"), represented by its
authorized signatory	, hereby acknowledges that the procedures and conditions for
<i>U</i> ,	GotF 2025 (the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held from December
	23, 2025) are determined by the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and
Regulations , and the Re	
regulations, and the re-	guiatory Documents.

All provisions in this Application for Participation ("the Application") apply to every member of the Participant's teams.

The Participant will be admitted to participate in the GotF 2025 in accordance with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents approved by PI.

- 2. For the preparation of documentation and the admission by PI, the Participant shall provide PI with the documents for every member of all Applicant's teams as defined by the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025 and the Rules and Regulations, and shall be responsible for the accuracy of the information contained in the documents provided by all the Applicant's team members.
 - 3. Being a participant of the GotF 2025, the Applicant guarantees that members of the Applicant's teams undertake to:
- comply with the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory
 Documents, all provisions of the GotF 2025 regulations and any other documents related to the GotF 2025, as well as all regulations and standards approved by PI and HCA counterparties;
 - participate in GotF 2025 in accordance with the Rules and Regulations and the Technical Rules;
 - not violate the status of a GoTF 2025 participant and comply with the requirements set for participants;
 - not violate anti-doping rules and to submit to doping control as required if applicable;
 - comply with sports ethical standards;
- not accept personally or through relatives and/or other persons, any monetary rewards and/or property (non-property) benefits from any legal entities and/or individuals for achieving certain results in any stage of the GotF 2025 in an unsporting manner, or for attempting to unlawfully influence the result of any stage of the GotF 2025;
- not participate, personally or through relatives or other persons, in risk-based games and bets (including sweepstakes, betting organizations, etc.) related to the GotF 2025;
- show high discipline and respect for partners, opponents, GotF 2025 officials, PI and HCA counterparties and clubs, referees, and spectators;
- comply with the decisions of jurisdictional and other bodies recognized by PI, including those relating to competitors and the Participant;
- resolve any disputes arising from participation in the GotF 2025 exclusively through the relevant jurisdictional bodies according to Rules and Regulations.
- 4. The Participant voluntarily agrees that violations of the Conditions for Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other binding documents by the Participant shall be considered by PI's jurisdictional bodies (including jurisdictional bodies recognized by PI). These bodies are entitled to apply sports sanctions and measures established by the relevant regulations and documents of PI.
- 5. By signing this Application, the Participant adheres to the Conditions of Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and Regulations and Regulatory Documents. For the avoidance of doubt, the Rules and Regulations and the Regulations on the Prize Pool and/or the Regulatory Documents set the basis for the payment.
- 6. By signing this Application, the Participant confirms that all the prize pool payments due to the Participant shall be made to the bank details provided in this Application.
 - 7. Hereby, the Participant provides PI with the following documents on all members of the Applicant's teams:
 - Acknowledgement of Understanding (except for the team's staff);
 - Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement (except for the team's staff);
 - Travel insurance;
 - Medical certificate (except for the team's staff);
 - Consent to the processing of personal data;
 - Parents' (legal representative's) consent (if applicable).

For the following Competition Disciplines, the Participant is not required to submit a medical certificate: Battle Royale. Featuring Fortnite; MOBA PC. Dota 2; MOBA Mobile. MLBB; VR-game. HADO; Phygital Drone Racing; and Battle of Robots.

The Participant:	Document date: / /2025
Address:	_
TIN:	
Tax registration reason code:	
Payment account:	
Bank:	
SWIFT:	
Correspondent account:	

TEAM AND SPORTS DETAILS

	Discipline:	Team name:				
Position	Full name	Date of birth	Passport number	Signature		
	Discipline:	Team name:				
Position	Full name	Date of birth	Passport number	Signature		
			•	6		
	Discipline:	Toom name:				
Position	Full name	Team name:	Passport number	Signature		
1 USITION	r un name	Date of birth	1 assport number	Signature		
	By signing the Application for Participation, each perfor Participation in the GotF 2025, the Rules and provide PI with the documents specified in the Appl	Regulations, and t	he Regulatory Docur	agrees to the Conditions nents, and undertakes to		

By signing the Application for Participation, each person-member of the Applicant's teams confirms that all prize pool payments due to the Applicant and to themselves personally shall be made to the banking details provided in the

Application for Participation.

ANNEX 1a

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING & WAIVER (Form)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING
I, ("the Participant")
Full name, ID document number
nereby acknowledge that I voluntarily agree to participate in the activities organized by Phygital International FZCO , a company duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the UAE, having trade license number DMCC-861365 ("the Organization"). I affirm this acknowledgement of Understanding ("the Acknowledgement") by accepting the attached Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement ("the Agreement") provided by the Organization.
I understand the inherent risks of participating in the International Multisport Competition "GAMES OF THE FUTURE" to be held
n Abu Dhabi, UAE, in December 2025 ("the GotF"), and I accept full financial responsibility for any injury I may cause to myself or to any other person due to my negligence or otherwise. I recognize that my participation in the GotF carries inherent risks, including, but not imited to, injury, fatality, or death resulting from falls, improper use or failure of equipment, or negligence on the part of myself or my eam members. I understand that the Organization accepts no liability for any claims arising from these inherent risks due to the extremenature of the GotF. By choosing to participate, I acknowledge that I am fully aware of the potential risks of bodily injury, death, or property damage, whether known or unknown. I understand that it is my responsibility to assess my own physical and mental readiness for the GotF. I guarantee and confirm that I possess the following documents required for participation in the GotF: Personal ID;
 Medical certificate issued by a recognized hospital, with an official stamp or seal, confirming no contraindications for sports activities involved in the GotF; and
 Personal travel insurance and any additional coverage (insurance) necessary for my participation in the GotF.
I hereby confirm that all requested documents submitted for my participation in the GotF, including the medical certificate, are
originals. I am fully prepared to provide these documents unconditionally for review at the Organization's request.
I acknowledge that I will comply with all laws and regulations applicable in the UAE, the morals and customs of the UAE. I
scknowledge that I have read and will also comply with all the Regulatory Documents for the GotF, including, but not limited to, health
and safety rules and regulations and all applicable security requirements that apply from time to time at the GotF premises and all GotF
venues or as otherwise notified by ASPIRE UAE – Sole Proprietorship LLC, a company established under the laws of the UAE, having its
principal offices at Accelerator 2 Building, Plot M12, Masdar City, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Aspire"), or Ethara – Sole Proprietorship LLC, a company
duly incorporated in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi, UAE and with its registered office at PO Box 130001, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Ethara"). I also agree o comply with any terms, conditions, and limitations imposed on Aspire or Ethara under any third-party contracts, including, but not
imited to, any venue agreements. I accept that I am accountable to Aspire and Ethara for my compliance with these regulations and any
consequences that may arise from non-compliance. I recognize my responsibility to adhere to the relevant principles, standards, rules and
regulations set forth by ABU DHABI NATIONAL EXHIBITIONS COMPANY (ADNEC) - PJSC and any other relevant authorities. My participation
n the GotF is contingent upon my adherence to these commitments. Additionally, I commit to ensuring that my conduct and actions during
he GotF do not disrupt the experience of other athletes or violate any established protocols. I will remain informed of any changes to the
ules and regulations throughout the duration of the GotF and will seek clarification from the Organization, Aspire or Ethara if needed.
I am aware that participation in the GotF may involve physically demanding activities. I should consult with a qualified medical
professional and follow their advice if I have any health concerns or fitness issues that could impact my ability to participate safely. Should

I am aware that participation in the GotF may involve physically demanding activities. I should consult with a qualified medical professional and follow their advice if I have any health concerns or fitness issues that could impact my ability to participate safely. Should I feel unwell during the GotF, I will immediately inform my team manager, the GotF staff, and the medical personnel responsible for a specific premise, venue or facility. I will promptly notify the designated responsible person from my team of any health restrictions I may have, including allergies, and of contact information for my next of kin to ensure communication in case of unforeseen circumstances.

I confirm that I have received and thoroughly reviewed all rules, instructions, safety guidelines, and conduct notices related to the GotF. I will utilize the GotF equipment solely for its intended purpose and in a safe manner. Additionally, I will adhere to the instructions provided by GotF judges, crew, representatives, and all posted signage throughout the GotF.

I acknowledge that the Organization, Aspire, or Ethara bears no responsibility for any loss or damage to property or personal belongings that may occur before, during, or after the GotF.

By signing below, I confirm that I have read the Acknowledgement thoroughly, understood, and accepted the terms and conditions, outlined risks and provisions, and all the information above. I hereby warrant that I (or my parent, legal guardian, or natural guardian ("the Guardian")), if I am under the age of 21 at the application submission for participation in the GotF) am of legal age and competent to enter into the Acknowledgement. I hereby confirm that the Acknowledgement is signed freely and voluntarily. I intend my signature to serve as a complete and unconditional release of all liability to the fullest extent permitted by law.

		//	0/0		//
Participant Name	Age	Date of Birth	Male / Female	Participant Signature	Date Signed
Te	l:		Email:		

FOR PARTICIPANTS OF MINORITY AGE (UNDER 21 AT APPLICATION SUBMISSION)

If the Participant is under the age of 21 at the application submission for participation in the GotF, the Guardian, for themselves and the minor Participant, hereby acknowledges that: (a) they have carefully read the Acknowledgement and fully understand all of its terms and conditions, outlined risks and provisions, and all the information above; and (b) they agree to be bound by all provisions of the Acknowledgement and hereby give their informed consent for the minor Participant to take part in the activities described herein.

			//
Guardian(s) Name	Relationship to	Guardian(s) Signature	Date Signed
Tel:	Email:		

WAIVER OF LIABILITY, ASSUMPTION OF RISK, AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

		=	OF THE FUTURE", Abu Dhabi, UA	E ("the GotF")
Competition Discipline:				
Description of Activity or Program:				
Participant Name:				
Team Name:				
Date(s) of my Participation:				
agreed by my parent, legal guardian, or na Activity, Program, or athletic training relate gain unfair advantages over other participal acknowledge that it is my sole responsibilifull responsibility for my own safety and we 2. In consideration for being per International FZCO, a company duly incorpe Organization"), its affiliates, instructors of the officers, employees, contractors, and repreparticipation in the Activity and agree NOT associated with my participation in the Activor may have in the future FOR INJURIES, Dunknown or anticipated or unanticipated (fany Released Party, whether or not such a where the Activity occurs, regardless of requipment, etc. Furthermore, I agree that neither I to attach the property of any Released Part 3. I hereby agree TO INDEMNIFY, causes of action, damages, lawsuits, arbitrational in the Activity and any related my participation in the Activity and any related my participation in the Activity and any related expenses incurred, of any kind or natural such expenses incurred in the Activity and any relativity and any relativity and any relativity and an	atural guardian ("the Great to the GotF ("the Activity to assess whether I III-being at all times and mitted to participate or ated and existing und the Activity, any owner/esentatives ("the Release TO INITIATE ANY LEG vity. This waiver and research, PROPERTY DAN "the Risks") arising from the Activity arising from the Risks") arising from the Risks") arising from the Risks") arising from the Risks" are directly related my participation status. The property of the Risks	uardian"); (ii) I am in tivity"); and (iii) I will ng improving of phy am adequately fit and under all circumstation the Activity, I have the laws of the U/lessor of the premise ased Party") from an alal ACTION against elease covers any and alal ACTION against elease covers any and alal ACTION against elease covers any and alal activity; (iii) as at that time; and or my representative my matter covered by Released Party HA as well as from any uting any such claim as well as from any uting any such claim as posts on social medit of, result from, or rity, I may be photogrance, biographical in the bedistributed, brother. The ment thoroughly, urreby warrant that I are and competent to any accepting this, I are sue. Void, or unenforcea or enforceability of om or related to the	in good health and physically fit to a not use any kinds of drugs, medicical performance, recovery, merned healthy to participate in the Annees while on the GotF premises, ereby RELEASE, WAIVE AND DAE, having trade license number DAE, having trade license number DAE, venues or facilities, and their ray and all liability associated with any Released Party for any reason all actions, claims, or demands the LINESSES, AND PROPERTY LOSS, on in the Activity; (ii) any negliger the condition of the premises, (iv) any use of the premises, (iv) any use of the premises, version and all liability expenses, judgements, costs, feels brought against any Released Party for any participate aphed or filmed on video. I consequent of the premise of the related of the premise of the related of the premise of th	o participate in any icine or methods to atal readiness, etc.). Ctivity, and I accept venues or facilities. ISCHARGE Phygital DMCC-861365 ("the espective directors, the or related to my on resulting from or hat I currently have whether known or nice or other acts by venues or facilities, against, sue, or seek y, claims, demands, es, damages and/or arty as the result of eased Party for any ion in the Activity. Ent to the use of my content across any arge, restriction, or ms and conditions, he age of 21 at the aby confirm that the luding those of my shall be considered agreement shall be
Tel:		Email:		
FOR PARTIC If the Participant is under the age and the minor Participant, hereby agrees to and conditions, and all the information aboutest of a person's physical and mental limits that, by signing the Agreement, both the Gouardian; and (d) they agree to indemnify a way to the Participant's involvement in the	of 21 at the application of the following: (a) the ove; (b) they acknowledge awa uardian and the Particiany Released Party from	n submission for par y have carefully read lge that the Activity areness and understa pant are waiving cei	the Agreement and fully unders is inherently dangerous and consanding of the Risks; (c) they acknotain rights on behalf of both the	tand all of its terms stitutes an extreme owledge and accept Participant and the
Guardian(s) Name	Relatio	onship to Minor	Guardian(s) Signature	// Date Signed
Tel:		Email:	(, 5	11_1
				H

ANNEX 2

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

CONDITIONS

for Participation in the International Multisport Competition to be held in Abu Dhabi, UAE, from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, titled "GAMES OF THE FUTURE"



CONDITIONS

for Participation in the International Multisport Competition to be held in Abu Dhabi, UAE, from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, titled "GAMES OF THE FUTURE"

1. PREAMBLE

- **1.1.** These Conditions for Participation in the International Multisport Competition to be held in Abu Dhabi, UAE, from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, titled "GAMES OF THE FUTURE" ("the Conditions"), are an integral part of the Rules and Regulations, as well as part of the Regulatory Documents governing the organization and holding of the Games of the Future 2025 ("the GotF 2025").
- 1.2. Participants in the GotF 2025 are those who submit an application for participation in the GotF 2025 ("the Application") in accordance with the terms outlined in the Rules and Regulations, as well as in the Regulatory Documents. For the purposes of the Conditions, "participants" refers to either individuals or legal entities ("the Participant").
- **1.3.** By submitting the Application, the Participant affirms that upon approval by Phygital International FZCO ("PI"), they will be fully bound by the Rules and Regulations (including, but not limited to, the Conditions) and all the Regulatory Documents.
- **1.4.** Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Rules and Regulations, as well as in the Regulatory Documents (as amended and supplemented from time to time).

2. GENERAL PROVISIONS

2.1. In accordance with the terms of the Conditions, PI undertakes to take all necessary measures to organize and facilitate the Participant's participation in the GotF 2025, in compliance with the provisions outlined in the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and/or any other relevant documents issued by PI.

The Participant undertakes to participate in the GotF 2025 strictly in accordance with its calendar/schedule, adhering to the requirements set forth in the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and/or any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the Conditions.

The Participant acknowledges that the GotF 2025 is not intended for advertising goods, services, or works. No fees will be charged for participation in the GotF 2025.

The Participant agrees to act with integrity and fairness at all times.

- **2.2.** By submitting the Application, the Participant agrees:
 - To grant PI an irrevocable, worldwide, royalty-free license and/or permission to use, reproduce, and distribute their image (including photographs and videos), as well as any graphical representations and other visual depictions of their likeness. This includes, but is not limited to, their appearance, stylized and photographic images, movements, symbols, and other visual identifiers; their full name (surname, first name, patronymic), pseudonym; their voice; autograph; and any other personal attributes for commercial purposes. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that PI may transfer these rights to third parties for non-commercial purposes without further consent or compensation;
 - To consent to PI recording photographs and videos during the competitions or any other events within the framework of the GotF 2025 in which they participate and grants permission for these recordings to be publicly broadcast and retransmitted by any means, including on PI's online platforms and in publicly accessible formats, for commercial purposes. The Participant understands that this may include use in promotional materials, advertisements, and various forms of media;

- To consent to PI recording of their gameplay, commentary, and any other interactions during live streaming, online broadcasts, and other forms of media coverage. PI is granted the right to edit and distribute such recordings across various platforms without requiring further consent or compensation;
- To transfer to PI all rights to any intellectual property created during the competitions or any other events within the framework of the GotF 2025 that involve their participation. This includes, but is not limited to, any materials, content, or productions resulting from their involvement or engagement, with the understanding that such rights are granted without expectation of compensation; and
- To processing of the Participant's personal data by PI, including, but not limited to: full name, passport data, date of birth, photographs, video and audio recordings with the Participant's participation, e-mail and phone number, and any other personal data provided by the Participant for the purposes of participation in the GoTF 2025.

The Participant acknowledges that they have read and fully understand the implications of the Conditions regarding the use of their likeness and contributions. They agree that this grant of rights is essential for the promotion and operation of the GotF 2025 and that they will not hold PI liable for any claims, damages, or liabilities related to the use of their image or contributions as outlined herein.

- **2.2.1.** The consent and rights provided for in Clause Ошибка! Источник ссылки не найден. hereof are granted by the Participant to PI:
 - On a non-exclusive basis;
 - For a variety of purposes, including, but not limited to, commercial, marketing, advertising, informational, and any other commercial or non-commercial activities;
 - In their entirety, in parts, or in any combination thereof;
 - Without any limitations regarding the duration of use or geographical territory (applicable worldwide); and
 - Without any obligation for PI to make payments to the Participant.
- **2.2.2.** The Participant acknowledges that any materials, products, or intellectual property created using, based on, or incorporating their image rights, as described in the Conditions, during the period of their consent may be utilized by PI without restrictions on duration or territory. The Participant understands and agrees that such materials will not be subject to deletion or removal at their request, except in instances where such use would unlawfully infringe upon the Participant's privacy, dignity, or reputation.
- 2.2.3. The Participant hereby confirms that the consent and rights specified in Clause 2.2 hereof have been granted to PI and will remain effective until such time as this consent is revoked in writing by submitting a written statement by the Participant to PI at legal@phygitalinternational.com. The Participant understands that withholding their personal data may limit PI's ability to operate effectively. Any data processing completed before revocation remains lawful. Without this consent, their non-public personal and health data will not be shared, and the Participant will not be eligible to participate in the GotF 2025. If the Participant withdraws their consent, their participant revokes their consent.
- **2.2.4.** The Participant acknowledges that engaging in the GotF 2025 carries inherent risks that could jeopardize their life and health, potentially resulting in injury or harm. By voluntarily participating in the GotF 2025, the Participant agrees to release PI from any liability for any injuries or damages sustained, including those caused by the actions of other competitors who may violate the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, or due to unforeseen accidents.



- **2.2.5.** The Participant agrees to accept and abide by all decisions made by PI regarding the organization and execution of the GotF 2025. This includes adherence to any rules, guidelines, or changes implemented by PI to ensure a fair and safe environment for all Participants.
- **2.3.** Upon submitting the Application, the Participant agrees to provide PI with the following documents:
 - Acknowledgement of Understanding (except for the team's staff);
 - Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement (except for the team's staff);
 - Travel insurance;
 - Medical certificate (except for the team's staff);
 - Consent to the processing of personal data;
 - Parents' (legal representative's) consent (if applicable).

For the following Competition Disciplines, the Participant is not required to submit a medical certificate:

- Battle Royale. Featuring Fortnite;
- MOBA PC. Dota 2;
- MOBA Mobile. MLBB;
- VR-game. HADO;
- Phygital Drone Racing; and
- Battle of Robots.

3. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS

3.1. PI has the right to:

- **3.1.1.** To require the Participant to rectify any breaches of the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI. PI may suspend or prohibit the Participant from participating in the GotF 2025 if:
 - The Participant does not comply with the requirements of the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI; and/or
 - The Participant failed to adhere to the requirements set forth in the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI; and/or
 - The Participant does not correct any violations of the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the Conditions; and/or
 - The Participant received a refusal to issue an accreditation card in the manner prescribed by the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI; and/or
 - The Participant provides false, inaccurate, and/or incomplete information necessary for participation in the GotF 2025, or if the Participant refuses to update such information; and/or
 - The Participant fails to comply with all laws and regulations applicable in the UAE and align with the morals and customs of the UAE, including, but not limited to, the TDRA Guidelines; and/or

- The content created, shared, or promoted by the Participant in connection with the GotF 2025, and/or if any content associated with the Participant's involvement in the GotF 2025, including, but not limited to, any content published on social media platforms, does not align with all laws and regulations applicable in the UAE, with the morals and customs of the UAE, including, but not limited to, the TDRA Guidelines; and/or
- In any other circumstances deemed appropriate by PI at its sole discretion.
- **3.1.2.** To distribute newsletters and communications to the Participant.
- **3.1.3.** To process and publish on their Internet resources, online platforms, the information provided by the Participant, including, but not limited to, its structuring, editing, combining, separating, translating the text into foreign languages, and performing other similar actions with that information.
- **3.1.4.** To deprive the Participant of the rights under the Conditions and unilaterally terminate the Conditions in case of receiving information about violations by the Participant of the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the Conditions.
- **3.1.5.** To utilize, at its sole discretion and without requiring consent from the Participant or providing any compensation, including for commercial purposes, any means of creating and/or using (including, but not limited to, reproduction, distribution, broadcasting, cable communication, public communication, processing) the Participant's image. This includes, but is not limited to, photographs, videos, full name, voice, pseudonym, signature, handwriting samples, physical appearance and its components, images of tattoos, stylized and photographic representations, slogans, popular expressions, symbols, movements, and other personal attributes.
- **3.1.6.** To exercise its rights and obligations by engaging third parties to fulfill these purposes without additional notification to the Participant.
- **3.1.7.** To exclude from participation in a team any Participant who fails to utilize tickets provided by PI for travel to the GotF premises, GotF venue, or GotF facilities due to their own fault.
- **3.1.8.** To modify the calendar of the GotF 2025, the schedule of matches, duels, or races, or to terminate the competitions, matches, duels, or races within the framework of the GotF 2025 at its sole discretion, without incurring any additional obligations to the team or the Participant.
- **3.1.9.** To exercise any other rights as stipulated by the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the terms of the Conditions.

3.2. PI undertakes:

- **3.2.1.** To organize and conduct the GotF 2025 in accordance with the Rules and Regulations and the applicable laws, taking all necessary measures to facilitate the Participant's involvement in the GotF 2025.
- **3.2.2.** To grant the Participant access to the GotF 2025, contingent upon the timely fulfillment of all requirements stipulated by the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.2.3.** To maintain effective communication with the Participant, including updates regarding their Application for the GotF 2025.
- **3.2.4.** To arrange accommodation for the Participant in a hotel or other lodging facilities, with the specific choice of location, category, and level of service being determined solely by PI.
 - **3.2.5.** To provide meals for the Participant at their accommodation during the GotF 2025.

- **3.2.6.** To supply the necessary inventory and equipment required for the Participant's participation in the GotF 2025 at training and competition venues, unless otherwise specified in the Rules and Regulations.
- **3.2.7.** To arrange travel for the Participant to and from the GotF venue by purchasing air, railway, or other necessary tickets on a one-time basis. PI is not obligated to repurchase tickets for any Participant who fails to utilize previously provided tickets. The class of travel, route, and other parameters will be determined at the sole discretion of PI.
- **3.2.8.** To fulfill any additional obligations as mandated by the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.

3.3. The Participant has the right to:

- **3.3.1.** To participate in the competitions and any other events within the framework of the GotF 2025 in accordance with the terms of the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.3.2.** To provide, update, or change the information about themselves specified in the Conditions, if necessary, in accordance with the procedure provided for by the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.3.3.** To exercise any other rights provided by the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.

3.4. The Participant undertakes:

- **3.4.1.** To participate actively and appropriately in the competitions and any other events within the framework of the GotF 2025 throughout its entire duration, adhering to the established calendar and schedule of events as outlined in the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.4.2.** To familiarize themselves with, comply with, and execute all provisions of the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the relevant documents of WPC (if applicable).
- **3.4.3.** To submit all necessary information and documentation required for admission to participate in the GotF 2025 within the deadlines specified by the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.4.4.** To provide PI with their banking details upon request, ensuring timely communication of any updates or changes to this information.
- **3.4.5.** To grant permission to PI to create and utilize their image through any means necessary (including, but not limited to, reproduction, distribution, broadcasting, cable communication, public communication, and processing) and through any technologies available. This includes, but is not limited to, photographs, videos, graphic representations, full name, voice, pseudonym, signature, handwriting samples, physical appearance and its components, images of tattoos, stylized and photographic depictions, slogans, popular expressions, symbols, movements, and any other personal attributes that may serve to identify the Participant.
- **3.4.6.** To actively participate (and ensure the Participant's participation) in the GotF 2025 and other related events (including media events, media days, autograph sessions, sponsor activations, filming in promotional materials, etc.) as directed by PI, using the agreed uniform, outfit, inventory, and equipment in accordance with the requirements of the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI. The Participant also agrees to engage in interviews (including flash interviews) as directed by PI. The procedure for participation in such events may be further detailed in the Rules and Regulations and other documents or instructions provided by PI.



- **3.4.7.** To refrain from engaging in any acts that are prohibited by the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the relevant documents of WPC (if applicable).
- **3.4.8.** To maintain confidentiality regarding any sensitive information pertaining to PI, WPC, and the organization and hosting of the GotF 2025 that comes to their knowledge as a result of their participation.
- **3.4.9.** Not to interfere with PI's activities that are aimed at organizing and conducting the GotF 2025.
- **3.4.10.** Not to engage in any actions that could disrupt the normal progression of the GotF 2025 or cause harm, including damage to the reputation of the GotF 2025, PI, its representatives, judges, or other participants.
- **3.4.11.** Not to assign or transfer their rights and obligations under the Conditions to any third parties without the prior written consent from PI.
- **3.4.12.** Not to unlawfully influence the results of competitions/matches/duels and any other events conducted within the framework of the GotF 2025.
- **3.4.13.** Not to engage personally, nor to allow relatives, natural or legal guardians, spouses, or any other individuals to participate in gambling activities through bookmakers by placing bets on matches or duels within the framework of the GotF, as well as on any official sports competitions across various sports disciplines.
- **3.4.14.** Not to obstruct the process of being replaced by another participant of the GotF 2025 in the manner prescribed by the Rules and Regulations.
- **3.4.15.** To coordinate with PI regarding the submission of a written application for withdrawal from the GotF 2025, ensuring that all necessary protocols are followed.
- **3.4.16.** To accept and comply with all sports sanctions imposed by PI and authorized bodies of the GotF 2025, in accordance with the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **3.4.17.** To arrive at the designated accommodation, training facilities, the GotF venues, the GotF premises, the GotF facilities, and any other related locations no later than the date and time set by PI. The Participant must not alter and/or add any information to their travel documents (such as tickets, boarding passes, itinerary receipts, etc.).
- **3.4.18.** To inform PI about any potential sponsors or partners prior to signing any relevant agreements. The Participant will enter into sponsorship agreements only with the written preliminary approval of PI and will disclose any entities interested in collaborating with them, including those wishing to sponsor their participation in the GotF 2025 or to utilize their image, clothing, or likeness for advertising and promotional purposes.
- **3.4.19.** To refrain from any form of insult, disrespect, immorality, defamatory, or offensiveness and from engaging in any actions or making statements that could negatively impact themselves or other participants in the GotF 2025, as well as the GotF 2025 itself, PI, WPC (including its members), and any sponsors, advertisers, or marketing partners, and any other persons/entities associated with PI or the GotF 2025. The Participant must treat all individuals involved with respect and refrain from any form of insult, disrespect, immorality, defamatory, or offensiveness.
- **3.4.20.** To secure a personal travel insurance policy and any additional coverage (insurance) necessary for the Participant's participation in the GotF 2025, unless otherwise specified by the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI. The Participant must provide PI with an original copy of this insurance policy at PI's request, which must be valid for the entire duration of the GotF 2025, and assumes responsibility for ensuring that the coverage is adequate according to the relevant insurance policy.



- **3.4.21.** To utilize their official public social media channels to share information promoting the GotF 2025 and corresponding to the objectives and general image concept of the GotF 2025, at the direction of PI and within the time period specified by PI; the procedure for posting publications can be detailed by the Rules and Regulations and other documents/instructions issued by PI.
- **3.4.22.** To take part in surveys, voting, questionnaires, and/or other research initiatives conducted on behalf of PI and/or third parties authorized by PI, the results of which may be used by PI in an aggregated form.
- **3.4.23.** To fulfill any additional responsibilities as mandated by the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI pertaining to the GotF 2025.
- **3.4.24.** To comply with all laws and regulations applicable in the UAE and align with the morals and customs of the UAE, including, but not limited to, the TDRA Guidelines. The Participant understands that any content associated with their participation in this GotF 2025 must adhere to these standards and regulations.
- 3.4.25. To be solely responsible for ensuring that any content they create, share, or promote in connection with the GotF 2025 does not violate all laws and regulations applicable in the UAE and align with the morals and customs of the UAE, including, but not limited to, the TDRA Guidelines. Should any content be found in violation, the Participant agrees to amend such content at their own expense upon notification by PI. Furthermore, this Participant's obligation applies equally to content published on social media platforms. The Participant must ensure that any posts, comments, or shared materials on social media adhere to the same legal and ethical standards and do not infringe upon the rights or reputations of others. Any violations identified in social media content will also require the Participant to promptly rectify them at their own expense. The Participant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless PI, its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents from any claims, damages, or liabilities arising from the Participant's failure to comply with the obligation specified herein or the applicable laws and regulations.
- **3.5.** The Participant acknowledges that they have read and will comply with all the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents including, but not limited to, health and safety rules and regulations and all applicable security requirements that apply from time to time at the GotF premises and all GotF venues or as otherwise notified by **ASPIRE UAE Sole Proprietorship LLC**, a company established under the laws of the UAE, having its principal offices at Accelerator 2 Building, Plot M12, Masdar City, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Aspire"), or **Ethara Sole Proprietorship LLC**, a company duly incorporated in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi, UAE, and with its registered office at PO Box 130001, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Ethara"). The Participant also agrees to comply with any terms, conditions, and limitations imposed on Aspire or Ethara under any third-party contracts, including, but not limited to, any venue agreements.

The Participant accepts that they are accountable to Aspire and Ethara for their compliance with the regulations specified in this Clause and for any consequences arising from their non-compliance. The Participant recognizes their responsibility to adhere to the specific regulations set forth by ABU DHABI NATIONAL EXHIBITIONS COMPANY (ADNEC) - PJSC and any other relevant authorities. The Participant's participation in the GotF 2025 is contingent upon their adherence to the commitments specified in this Clause. Additionally, the Participant commits to ensuring that their conduct and actions during the GotF 2025 do not disrupt the experience of other athletes or violate any established protocols. The Participant will remain informed of any changes to the rules and regulations throughout the duration of the GotF 2025 and will seek clarification from PI, Aspire, or Ethara if needed.

3.6. In return for being permitted to participate in the following activity or program, including any associated use of the premises, facilities, staff, equipment, transportation, the Participant releases, waives and promises not to sue PI, its directors, officers, employees, and agents, subcontractors from liability from any and all claims, including the negligence of PI, resulting in personal injury (including

death), emotional injury, accidents or illnesses, and property loss, in connection with participation in the GotF and any use of premises, facilities. For clarification, the Participant will sign a separate Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnity Agreement detailing these terms.

4. LIABILITY. SANCTIONS

- **4.1.** The Participant and PI are responsible for non-fulfillment or improper fulfillment of their obligations under the Conditions in accordance with the applicable laws, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the Conditions.
- **4.2.** In case the Participant violates the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, any other relevant documents issued by PI, as well as the Conditions, PI has the right to apply disciplinary action or sports sanctions to the Participant in the manner prescribed by the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI.
- **4.3.** If the Participant fails to meet its obligations under the Conditions or is disqualified, PI may recover any costs incurred to support the Participant's involvement in the GotF 2025.

5. FORCE MAJEURE

5.1. The Participant and PI are released from liability for partial or complete non-fulfillment of obligations under the Conditions if this non-fulfillment was the result of force majeure circumstances that arose after submitting the Application as a result of extraordinary events that neither of them could foresee or prevent by reasonable measures (force majeure).

Such force majeure circumstances include: flood, fire, earthquake, explosion, storm, subsidence of soil, epidemic and other natural phenomena, war or military actions, as well as the issuance by the competent state body of an act that makes it impossible for the Participant or PI to fulfill their obligations under the Conditions (including the introduction of restrictive measures in connection with the threat of the spread of coronavirus infection, including, in the form of a ban on holding any mass and other measures, suspension/termination in connection with such restrictions on the activities of state (municipal) bodies and organizations, the introduction of non-working days during the period of restrictive measures).

- **5.2.** The entity referring to force majeure circumstances is obliged to inform the other entity in writing about the occurrence of such circumstances no later than 2 (Two) days after their occurrence.
- **5.3.** Upon termination of the specified circumstances, the entity referring to their effect must immediately notify the other entity in writing.
- **5.4.** In the event of force majeure circumstances, the deadline for the fulfillment of obligations under the Conditions is postponed in proportion to the time during which such circumstances and their consequences apply.

6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- **6.1.** The Conditions and any dispute or claim (including non-contractual dispute or claim) arising in connection with the Conditions, the subject matter or conclusion hereof, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.
- **6.2.** Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or in connection with the Conditions, including any matter concerning the existence, validity or termination hereof, shall be settled by the parties through negotiations. If the parties fail to reach a settlement through negotiations within 30 (Thirty) days from the date a dispute arises, any of the parties may refer to and finally resolved by arbitration under the Arbitration Rules of the London Court of International Arbitration, which Rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Clause.

The number of arbitrators shall be three.

The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be the DIFC.

The language to be used in the arbitration shall be English.

The governing law of the arbitration agreement shall be the substantive laws of England and Wales.

7. FINAL PROVISIONS

- **7.1.** PI reserves the right to amend or modify the Conditions at any time prior to the commencement of the GotF 2025.
- **7.2.** The Conditions, together with the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, and any other relevant documents issued by PI, constitute the entire agreement between the Participant and PI regarding participation in the GotF 2025. No other agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, shall be deemed to exist or bind the parties.
- **7.3.** If any provision of the Conditions is found to be invalid or unenforceable by a competent authority, the remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by the applicable laws.
- **7.4.** It is allowed to send correspondence via electronic communication (e-mail) to the addresses specified in the Application and on the official website of the GotF 2025.
- **7.5.** If an issue is not addressed by the Conditions, the Rules and Regulations, the Regulatory Documents, or any other relevant documents issued by PI, the applicable laws shall apply.



ANNEX 3

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

PARENT/GUARDIAN CONSENT

for the minor Child (or Ward)'s trip to participate in the competition (Form)



PARENT/GUARDIAN CONSENT

for the minor Child (or Ward)'s trip to participate in the competition

I / We (parents, legal guardians or natural guardians ("the Guardian")), the undersigned:

Guardian Information:			
Full name:			
Relationship to Child (or Ward):			
Date of birth:			
Citizenship:			
Number and date of issue of passport:			
Issuing authority of passport:			
Home address:			
-			
Full name:			
Relationship to Child (or Ward):			
Date of birth:			
Citizenship:			
Number and date of issue of passport:			
Issuing authority of passport:			
Home address:			
nome address.			
-			
rant our express written permission for th	ne Child (or Ward)		
			Full Name
o travel from		to	UAE, Abu Dhabi
Point of O	rigin (Country, City)		Destination (Country, City)
o participate in The I	ntarnational Multisnar	t Compotition "GAN	IES OF THE FUTURE" ("the GotF")
o participate in The I	iternational Multispor	Competition Nam	
		•	
which will be held for a period of	12.2025 –12.2025	_ for a period of	
	Competition Period		Travel Dates
hild (or Ward) Information:			
Full name:			
Date of birth:			
Gender:			
Citizenship:			
Number and date of issue of passport:			
Issuing authority of passport:			
Home address:			
<u>-</u>			
his Child (or Ward) has our consent to tra	vel alone 🗆 <i>or</i> This Chil	d (or Ward) has our o	consent to travel with □
ccompanying Person:			
Full name:			
-			
Relationship to Child (or Ward):			
Number and date of issue of passport:			
Issuing authority of passport:			
Home address:			

- 1. I/ We acknowledge that I/ we and the Child (or Ward) have read and will comply with all the Regulatory Documents for the GotF, including, but not limited to, the specific regulations set forth by ABU DHABI NATIONAL EXHIBITIONS COMPANY (ADNEC) PJSC and any other relevant authorities, health and safety rules and regulations and all applicable security requirements that apply from time to time at the GotF premises and all GotF venues or as otherwise notified by ASPIRE UAE Sole Proprietorship LLC, a company established under the laws of the UAE, having its principal offices at Accelerator 2 Building, Plot M12, Masdar City, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Aspire"), or Ethara Sole Proprietorship LLC, a company duly incorporated in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi, UAE and with its registered office at PO Box 130001, Abu Dhabi, UAE ("Ethara"). We and the Child (or Ward) also agree to comply with any terms, conditions, and limitations imposed on Aspire or Ethara under any third-party contracts, including, but not limited to, any venue agreements.
- 2. I / We and the Child (or Ward) bear sole responsibility for personal belongings left at the GotF premises, GotF venues and GotF facilities, and in case of their loss, I / we waive the right to seek compensation.

- 3. I / We give our consent for medical assistance to be provided to the Child (or Ward) if necessary.
- 4. I / We are familiar with the provisions and other documents related to the organization of the GotF.
- 5. I / We agree that the performances by the Child (or Ward), as well as interviews with them and/or with us, may be recorded and utilized in various media formats for promotional purposes without time or format restrictions. I / we hereby waive any right to compensation regarding these materials.
- 6. If necessary, I / we are ready to utilize medical assistance provided to us and/or the Child (or Ward) by the GotF organizers (Phygital International FZCO, a company duly incorporated in the UAE and with its registered office at Unit No: 802-006, Platinum Tower, Plot No: JLT-PH1-I2, Jumeirah Lakes Towers, P.O. Box 450297, Dubai, UAE ("PI"), Aspire or Ethara).
- 7. I / We assume full responsibility for any injury sustained by us and/or the Child (or Ward) during the GotF and do not have the right to demand any compensation for damages from the GotF organizers (PI, Aspire or Ethara).
- 8. I / We accept responsibility for the behavior of the Child (or Ward) during the GotF and the potential consequences of such behavior that may affect their physical and emotional state, and I / we do not have the right to demand any compensation for damages from the GotF organizers (PI, Aspire or Ethara).
- 9. I / We confirm that the decision for the Child (or Ward) to participate in the GotF was made voluntarily, without coercion, and with full legal capacity, taking into account the potential risks associated with the GotF.
- 10. I / We understand that participation of the Child (or Ward) in the GotF, in the presence of medical contraindications, may lead to negative consequences for their health and life, and I / we confirm that the Child (or Ward) has received the necessary medical clearance to participate in the GotF.
- 11. I/we acknowledge the importance of adhering to all regulations and guidelines associated with participation in the GotF, as well as complying with all applicable laws and regulations in the UAE, and with the morals and customs of the UAE, including but not limited to the TDRA Guidelines. We commit to ensuring that the Child (or Ward) will comply with these standards, rules, and regulations.
- I/We hereby affirm that by giving this consent, we are doing so voluntarily and in the best interests of the Child (or Ward) for whom we are the parents, legal guardians, or natural guardians. We acknowledge that any violation of the terms of this consent—including but not limited to failing to adhere to lawful instructions from judges or other authorized individuals involved in the GotF, such as parents, relatives, spectators, or coaches, etc.—may lead to disciplinary action or sports sanctions, including the disqualification of the Child (or Ward) from participation in the GotF.

I / We, for ourselves and the Child (or Ward), acknowledge and agree to the following: (a) we have thoroughly reviewed this consent form and fully comprehend all its terms; and (b) we consent to be bound by all provisions outlined in this consent and provide our informed consent for the Child to engage in the GotF specified herein.

By signing below, I / we recognize that this consent is a prerequisite for the Child (or Ward)'s participation in the GotF. I / we also confirm that I am legally authorized to provide this consent on behalf of the Child (or Ward) and that all information provided is accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge. For the avoidance of any doubt, this consent also extends to the qualifying Events of the GotF occurred in July 2025.

				/ /
	Guardian Name	Relationship to Child (or Ward)	Guardian Signature	Date Signed
Tel:		Email:		
				/
	Guardian Name	Relationship to Child (or Ward)	Guardian Signature	Date Signed
Tel:		Email:		

ANNEX 3a

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

CONSENT TO PERSONAL DATA (ADULTS)
(Form)

CONSENT TO THE PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA¹

l,		("the Participant")
	Full name. ID document number	

hereby grant my consent to **Phygital International FZCO** ("PI"), a company duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the UAE, having trade license number DMCC-861365 ("the Operator" or "the Organization") for the collection, processing, transfer, and use of my personal data. This includes, but is not limited to:

- personal information (first and last name or unique identifier, middle name, nickname, sex, height, weight, photo, date of birth, place of birth, citizenship, country of birth, city (residency registration), country (residency registration), etc.);
- contact information (email address (residency registration), mobile phone number, my postal address (including zip code, street, house, building, apartment), work address, organization phone number, country and city of the embassy, etc.);
- participation details (arrival and departure dates, athlete position, event participation details, player number, class and category, achievements, function and privileges, venues and zones, etc.);
- identification information (document type, documents, issuing authority of identification document, date of issu,e and expiry of identification document, etc.);
- financial information (bank details, Social Security Number (SSN), Tax Identification Number (TIN), etc.);
- medical information (medical and health information, etc.); and
- additional information (social media accounts, organization affiliation, sports participation, etc.);

with the following actions with my personal data: collection, processing, transfer, and use of my personal data by the Organization, which may involve various operations performed with or without the automated tools, including, but not limited to, collection, recording, systematization, accumulation, storage, clarification (updating, modification), extraction, use, transfer (distribution, provision, access), depersonalization, blocking, deletion, and destruction of personal data. I acknowledge that the purposes for processing my personal data have been clearly explained.

I acknowledge that my personal data must be processed to enable my participation, both in person and online, in **the International Multisport Competition "GAMES OF THE FUTURE"** to be held in **Abu Dhabi**, **UAE**, in December 2025 ("the GotF"). My personal data will be utilized for activities related to the GotF, such as facilitating my participation in any events organized by the Organization and working or coordinating with the Host City and other third parties involved in the organization or delivery of the GotF. This processing is essential for the following purposes, including, but not limited to:

- preparing documents, issuing badges, arranging accommodation, access control, account creation, and providing access to content on the Organization's platform (RSLTS.COM);
- conducting surveys and questionnaires related to the GotF;
- processing for archiving purposes in the public interest, as well as for scientific, historical research, or statistical purposes;
- processing necessary for reasons of substantial public interest;
- organizing, conducting, and summarizing the GotF, including rating and publishing results;
- inclusion of processed personal data in various lists (registers, event minutes, journals, and other documents) and reporting forms, as well as in participant application lists as stipulated by the Regulatory Documents for the GotF;
- establishing a system for recording data on the GotF participants and their sports qualifications;
- displaying photographs, names, surnames, patronymics, dates and places of birth, and sports achievements on information resources accessible to an unlimited audience;
- utilizing personal data in promotional materials such as booklets, programs, posters, and information stands;
- publishing achievements in media outlets and broadcasting participation in the GotF on television;
- engaging coaches or other individuals whose activities align with the mission of the Organization and who are involved in the Organization's events (including disciplines and points); and
- any other purposes necessary for compliance with laws and regulations applicable in the UAE, and are aligned with the morals and customs of the UAE.

I acknowledge that the personal data collected hereunder may be transferred to World Phygital Community Limited ("WPC"), the Host City, and other third parties involved in the organization or delivery of the GotF for subsequent automated and non-automated processing by taking the above actions to achieve the above objectives. In all instances, my personal data will be processed by these recipients as data controllers in accordance with their own privacy policies.

This consent is valid from the date of my application submission for participation in the GotF and will remain in effect indefinitely for the purposes of conducting, fostering, developing, and promoting the GotF. This consent also extends to the qualifying events of the GotF that occurred in July 2025.

I acknowledge my right to revoke consent or request correction of inaccurate personal data by submitting a written statement to the Organization at legal@phygitalinternational.com. I understand that withholding my personal data may limit the Organization's ability to operate effectively. Any data processing completed before revocation remains lawful. Without this consent, my non-public personal and health data will not be shared, and I will not be eligible to participate in the GotF. If I withdraw consent, my participation will end. The Organization may continue to use my publicly available personal data after the consent is revoked.

¹ This consent also covers any information related to athletes, coaches, or other individuals whose activities are relevant to the mission of WPC/PI and who are participating in WPC/PI events.

In the event of any updates or changes to my data, I commit to promptly notifying the Organization of such changes.								
			0/0					
Participant Name	Age	Date of Birth	Male / Female	Participant Signature	Date Signed			
Tel·			Fmail [.]					

ANNEX 3b

to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

CONSENT TO PERSONAL DATA (CHILDREN)
(Form)



CONSENT TO THE PROCESSING OF PERSONAL DATA¹

If the participant is under the age of 21 at the time of the application submission for participation, their parents, legal guardians, or natural guardians ("the Guardian"), for themselves and the minor Participant, acknowledge and agree to the following: (a) they have thoroughly reviewed this consent form and fully comprehend all its terms and conditions concerning the collection, processing, transfer, and usage of the minor Participant's personal data; and (b) they consent to be bound by all provisions outlined in this consent and provide their informed consent for the minor Participant to engage in the activities specified herein.

By signing below, the Guardian explicitly grants permission to **Phygital International FZCO** ("PI"), a company duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the UAE, having trade license number DMCC-861365 ("the Operator" or "the Organization") for the collection, processing, transfer, and use of the minor Participant's personal data. This includes, but is not limited to:

- personal information (first and last name or unique identifier, middle name, nickname, sex, height, weight, photo, date of birth, place of birth, citizenship, country of birth, city (residency registration), country (residency registration), etc.);
- contact information (email address (residency registration), mobile phone number, postal address (including zip code, street, house, building, apartment), work address, organization phone number, country and city of the embassy, etc.);
- participation details (arrival and departure dates, athlete position, event participation details, player number, class and category, achievements, function and privileges, venues and zones, etc.);
- identification information (document type, documents, issuing authority of identification document, date of issue, and expiry of identification document, etc.);
- financial information (bank details, Social Security Number (SSN), Tax Identification Number (TIN), etc.);
- medical information (medical and health information, etc.); and
- additional information (social media accounts, organization affiliation, sports participation, etc.);

with the following actions with the minor Participant's personal data: collection, processing, transfer, and use of the minor Participant's personal data by the Organization, which may involve various operations performed with or without the automated tools, including, but not limited to, collection, recording, systematization, accumulation, storage, clarification (updating, modification), extraction, use, transfer (distribution, provision, access), depersonalization, blocking, deletion, and destruction of personal data. The Guardian, for themselves and the minor Participant, acknowledges that the purposes for processing the minor Participant's personal data have been clearly explained.

The Guardian, for themselves and the minor Participant, acknowledges and agrees that the minor Participant's personal data must be processed to enable the minor Participant's participation, both in person and online, in **the International Multisport Competition "GAMES OF THE FUTURE"** to be held in **Abu Dhabi**, **UAE**, in December 2025 ("the GotF").

The Guardian, for themselves and the minor Participant, acknowledges and agrees that the minor Participant's personal data will be utilized for activities related to the GotF, such as facilitating the minor Participant's participation in any events organized by the Organization and working or coordinating with the Host City and other third parties involved in the organization or delivery of the GotF. This processing is essential for the following purposes, including, but not limited to:

- preparing documents, issuing badges, arranging accommodation, access control, account creation, and providing access to content on the Organization's platform (RSLTS.COM);
- conducting surveys and questionnaires related to the GotF;
- processing for archiving purposes in the public interest, as well as for scientific, historical research, or statistical purposes;
- processing necessary for reasons of substantial public interest;
- organizing, conducting, and summarizing the GotF, including rating and publishing results;
- inclusion of processed personal data in various lists (registers, event minutes, journals, and other documents) and reporting forms, as well as in participant application lists as stipulated by the Regulatory Documents for the GotF;
- establishing a system for recording data on the GotF participants and their sports qualifications;
- displaying photographs, names, surnames, patronymics, dates and places of birth, and sports achievements on information resources accessible to an unlimited audience;
- utilizing personal data in promotional materials such as booklets, programs, posters, and information stands;
- publishing achievements in media outlets and broadcasting participation in the GotF on television;
- engaging coaches or other individuals whose activities align with the mission of the Organization and who are involved in the Organization's events (including disciplines and points); and
- any other purposes necessary for compliance with laws and regulations applicable in the UAE, and are aligned with the morals and customs of the UAE.

The Guardian, for themselves and the minor Participant, acknowledges and agrees that the minor Participant's personal data collected hereunder may be transferred to World Phygital Community Limited ("WPC"), the Host City, and other third parties involved in the organization or delivery of the GotF for subsequent automated and non-automated processing by taking the above actions to achieve the above objectives. In all instances, the minor Participant's personal data will be processed by these recipients as data controllers in accordance with their own privacy policies.

This consent is valid from the date of the minor Participant's application submission for participation in the GotF and will remain in effect indefinitely for the purposes of conducting, fostering, developing, and promoting the GotF. This consent also extends to the qualifying events of the GotF that occurred in July 2025.

¹ This consent also covers any information related to athletes, coaches, or other individuals whose activities are relevant to the mission of WPC/PI and who are participating in WPC/PI events.

Furthermore, the Guardian understands that this consent is necessary for the minor Participant's involvement in the GotF and that the Guardian has the right to revoke consent or request correction of inaccurate personal data by submitting a written statement to the Organization at legal@phygitalinternational.com. The Guardian understands that withholding the minor Participant's personal data may limit the Organization's ability to operate effectively. Any data processing completed before revocation remains lawful. Without this consent, the minor Participant's non-public personal and health data will not be shared, and the minor Participant will not be eligible to participate in the GotF. If the Guardian withdraws their consent, the minor Participant's participation will end. The Organization may continue to use the minor Participant's publicly available personal data after the consent is revoked.

By signing this document, the Guardian confirms that they are legally authorized to provide this consent on behalf of the minor Participant and that all information provided is accurate to the best of their knowledge.

			//	\Box / \Box		/
Minor Participant Na	ime	Age	Date of Birth	Male / Female	Minor Participant Signature	Date Signed
	Tel:			Emai	il:	
Guardian Name		Rela	tionship to Mine	or Participant	Guardian Signature	Date Signed
	Tel:			Emai	il:	
Guardian Name		Rela	tionship to Min	or Participant	Guardian Signature	Date Signed
	Tel·			Fmai	il·	



to the Rules and Regulations of the International Multisport Tournament "Games of the Future" to be held for a period from December 14, 2025, to December 23, 2025, in Abu Dhabi, UAE

PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS

All penalties are imposed as a percentage of the prize pool share of the participant/team. The severity of the penalty depends on the nature of the violation, its impact on the competition, and any repeated offenses.

Application Rules

- Penalties marked "per match"/"per incident"/"per slot"/"per broadcast"/"per post"/"per day" are cumulative and may be applied for each separate occurrence. Distinct violations may be added together for the same match or tournament.
- Penalties marked "once" are applied one time per tournament (per case). If a new, separate case occurs, a new penalty may be imposed.
- Repeat offenses of the same type within the tournament must be calculated in the upper half of the stated range; third and subsequent offenses are imposed at the top of the range.
- Financial penalties do not preclude other disciplinary measures (warnings, technical defeats/forfeits, suspensions, disqualifications, annulment of results) where applicable by the Regulations.
- Total penalties may not exceed the participant's/team's prize pool share. Any excess results in forfeiture of prize money; no negative balance is created by penalties.

PENALTY TABLE

Cotogory	Violation Violation	Penalty (%	Application
Category	Violation	• '	Application
		of prize	
		pool)	
Organizational Penalties	Late arrival to a match / delaying the	1–3%	Per match (per
	match by more than 10 minutes		occurrence)
	Failure to appear at a match	5–10%	Per match missed
	Refusal to continue participation in the	10–15%	Once (on
	competition		withdrawal)
	Failure to comply with the decisions of	5–10%	Per decision/instance
	the JCP or Disciplinary Committee		
	Forgery or use of falsified documents	10–20%	Once per case
	Failure to comply with equipment	2–5%	Per match until
	requirements		corrected
Penalties Against Referees and Participants	Disrespectful behavior (insults, threats,	5–15%	Per incident
	harassment) towards referees,		
	opponents, spectators, media		
	Violation of sports etiquette, principles	3–7%	Per incident
	of fair play, unsportsmanlike conduct,		
	provocations		
	Obstructing or influencing referees' or	7–15%	Per incident
	organizers' work before, during or after		
	matches		



	The state of the s	10.200/	
	Negative or political statements in	10–20%	Per
	competition or media/social media;		incident/post/broadc
	discriminatory/racist language; display		ast
	of discrediting symbols		
	Participation in mass fights	15–30%	Per incident
	Unauthorized use of personal devices	2–5%	Per incident/match
	during the tournament (including		
	practice areas)		
	Late signing of starting protocols	1–3%	Per match
	Deliberate interruption or delay of a	5-10%	Per incident
	match		
	Use of unauthorized or third-party	7–15%	Per incident/match
	accounts	, 10,0	1 01 1110100010/ 111000011
	Use of prohibited software (cheats,	15–30%	Per match detected
	modifications)	15 5070	T of filaton detected
	Use of dangerous or banned equipment	10–20%	Per match until
Match-Related	ese of dangerous of cannot equipment	10 2070	corrected
Penalties	Use of inappropriate nicknames or team	2–5%	Once; must be
	names (offensive, misleading, duplicate,	2 3 70	corrected (if not
	etc.)		corrected, per match)
	etc.)		corrected, per materi)
Commercial and Media Penalties	Refusal to participate in mandatory	3–7%	Per scheduled slot
	media/promotional activities of the		missed
	tournament		
	Displaying political, religious, or other	5-10%	Per match
	slogans on uniforms		appearance
	Unauthorized advertising on uniforms	5-10%	Per match/day of
	or equipment		display
	Violation of tournament sponsors'	7–15%	Per incident; if
	exclusivity		continuing—per
			match/day
	Illegal use of media rights	10–20%	Per unauthorized
	(unauthorized broadcasts, sublicensing	10 2070	broadcast/publicatio
	to third parties)		n
	Breach of commercial obligations	5–15%	Per missed
	towards the organizer	3 1370	milestone/period
	Failure to attend mandatory press	3–7%	Per press event
	conferences/interviews; refusal to	J-770	missed
	communicate in the mixed zone		misseu
		2.50/	Per verified instance
	Failure to use official branding in social	2–5%	
	media or non-compliance with		(may be aggregated
Ì	communication/branding guidelines	1	by reporting period)



Phygital International FZCO

©